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Financial Highlights
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
report the annual audited results of the Company together with
the subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2023
amounted to approximately HK$185.8 million, representing a
decrease of 31.7% from the previous year. Overall gross profit
amounted to approximately HK$25.6 million, representing a
decrease of 53.6% from the previous year. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$26.1 million (2022:
HK$0.5 million).

Basic loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
HK9.77 cents (2022: HK0.19 cent) per share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2023 was a tough year for the Group, which was impacted by the
ongoing war in Ukraine, persistent inflation pressure and interest
rate hike. The challenging environment weakened the consumer
sentiment, particularly in Europe, which was the major market for
the Group’s top customers. In addition, the weak market demand
affected the Group’s customers’ initiatives to undertake new
project development, leading to fewer new revenue streams for
the Group. As a result, the Group’s turnover dropped as compared
with the year 2022. Furthermore, strong United States dollar
increased the volatility of Renminbi (“RMB”). Hence, the Group
recorded an unrealised fair value loss of approximately HK$9.8
million (2022: HK$4.2 million) in the forward currency contracts
expiring in years 2024 and 2025. These contracts were entered to
manage the influence of the volatility of RMB on manufacturing
costs for years 2024 and 2025, which had no impact to the
Group's cash flow for year 2023.

For the precision parts and components segment, the turnover
decreased by 31.7% to approximately HK$185.8 million as
compared with the year 2022. If excluded the above unrealised fair
value net loss of HK$9.8 million (2022: HK$4.2million) on forward
currency contracts, the segment loss was approximately HK$14.5
million (2022: profit of HK$7.6 million). The segment loss was
mainly due to the decline in revenue that led to the lower capacity
utilisation of the Group’s production facilities, while the direct cost
of sales including factory overhead and administrative expenses
were not proportionately reduced to the same extend.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The gross profit margin of the Group in 2023 had decreased by
6.5 percentage points to 13.8% as compared with the year 2022,
mainly due to the decline in turnover. The selling and distribution
costs decreased by 13.4% to approximately HK$16.8 million, while
the administrative and other expenses slightly decreased by 1.0%
to approximately HK$23.2 million. The financial costs maintained
at HK$0.5 million, due to the rise of market interest rate in 2023,
despite the decline in financing activities.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the inflation is continuing its downward trend, and
close to the global central banks’ expectation. The interest rate is
likely at the peak that is the highest among the last 20 years, and
appropriate to begin declining. A slow growth in global economy
is expected in 2024. The Group's customers had resumed and
speeded up the new project development from the beginning of
2024 and the Group's revenue from new projects is expected to
pick up again in 2024. The inventories of the Group customers
together with their contract manufacturers and end-customers had
receded from the peak. The Group expects the orders from our
customers will increase in 2024. With the above good signs: new
project development, normalisation of inventory level, together
with the enhanced flexibility and efficiency in production, we are
confidence that the Group will have a better year in 2024. After
distributed the interim and final dividends in total of approximately
HK$21.3 million in 2023, the Group’s financial position remains
healthy, and is strong enough to finance any business expansion
and daily operation, amid any economic uncertainty in the future.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our board
of directors, management team and all our staff for their
contribution, and also thank for the support of our shareholders
and business partners over the years.

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024

EY EN-CRE )

AEB T - —FrBEBEMNER-_FT =
FTH6SEEFEDHE138%  EXxEFRA
BEETE T - $HE REHEMARA13.4%
% #716,800,00078 70 © T & H fih &
A 1.0% % 4923,200,0008 7T - B ERLE
EEEMRY ERRZZE==FmMEHH
K T BIIS RN #3575 £9500,00078 7T ©

ARTERRE
RERK - BRSAFETRBS YRR

FEEPRBITHERE R BN EEH
BE-TZFNRSKFRABEEE B
EREEBERR T _NFEEEE - —F

—NFRABAEERFERERINRFE
B AEEEHFRAFEE 2 KA
RZTEZMHFEBEOH AEERFER
EA%%ﬁﬁ&MﬁEﬁmfﬁamﬁ
CEB T _MFRERFPMESY
*ﬂ‘ﬁﬁi&.‘ﬂu cHEM EMFIFAE  HEE Z
ﬁ% EFEEFELUARBRANEER Y
BEMEMBEYE  BMBELZZEZNF
mM%#R%Aﬂﬁ AT T ZFIREHE
KR B R R HA IR B & 5T 4921,300,0007% 7T
% AEBEMFRDETER  WEUE
5 B 1% T 7] 3 75 98 R S 1 A T E R 3R
HEBRESD -

&)

AARERLEHEFEKRE - EEABR
REBETIRFHOER  UEZHEK
REBEKRHEZFRELANS -

TE
FEEA

BE —E-_WMF=-A=-+=H

K & P International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2023




BEEEz2NmR DM

Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The following highlights the Group's results for the year ended 31
December 2023.

o Turnover decreased by 31.7% from the previous year to
approximately HK$185.8 million for the year.

o Gross profit decreased by HK$29.7 million from the previous
year to approximately HK$25.6 million in 2023.

o Result before finance costs was worsen by HK$27.8 million
from the previous year’'s profit of approximately HK$1.8
million to loss of approximately HK$26.0 million for the year.

o Finance costs remained the same as the previous year of
approximately HK$0.5 million.

o Loss after tax for the year was approximately HK$26.1
million.

In the year under review, turnover of the precision parts and
components segment had decreased by 31.7% as compared with
the previous year.

The Group’s overall gross profit had decreased by 53.6% from the
previous year.

The Group’s finance costs remained the same as the previous year
of approximately HK$0.5 million.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated cash flow and loan facilities provided by its principal
bankers and other financial institution in Hong Kong.

The total borrowings from banks included all term loans, import
and export loans, which amounted to approximately HK$7.0
million as at 31 December 2023.

The Group’s financial position remains healthy. At the end of the
reporting period, the aggregate balance of bank balances and cash
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$100.4 million.

The Group's borrowings are on a floating rate basis and are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars. These
match with the principal currencies in which the Group conducts
its business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

The gearing ratio on the basis of net debt divided by the total
capital plus net debt as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 was
negative. The negative gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 represents the Group is “net cash” positive (i.e. more bank
balances and cash than its debt).

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, none of the Group’s machines
and equipment was pledged under lease.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had 267,004,800 ordinary
shares in issue with total shareholders’ equity of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$299.8 million.

FUND RAISING

Other than obtaining general loan facilities to finance the Group's
trading requirements, the Group did not have any fund raising
activities in 2023.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total workforce of
approximately 729 of which approximately 30 were based in Hong
Kong, approximately 5 were based in overseas and approximately
694 were based in Mainland China.

Moreover, under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
of Hong Kong, the Group has operated a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for all
its Hong Kong employees. For overseas and Mainland China
employees, the Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme
operated by the respective local governments.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are
conducted in accordance with high ethical standards. This reflects
its belief that, in the achievement of its long-term objectives, it is
imperative to act with probity, transparency and accountability.
By so acting, the Company believes that shareholder wealth will
be maximised in the long term and that its employees, those with
whom it does business and the communities in which it operates
will all benefit.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs
management of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to
ensuring that its objectives are met. The Board is committed to
maintaining and developing robust corporate governance practices
that are intended to ensure:

satisfactory and sustainable returns to shareholders;

- that the interests of those who deal with the Company are
safeguarded,

- that overall business risk is understood and managed
appropriately;

- the delivery of high-quality products to the satisfaction of
customers; and

- that high standards of ethics are maintained.

The Group will continuously review and adjust, if necessary,
its business strategies and keep track of the changing market
conditions to ensure prompt and proactive measures will be taken
to respond to the changes and meet the market needs to foster
the sustainability of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, as set out
in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, throughout the year
ended 31 December 2023, except for the following deviation:

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer are not separate and are performed by
Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since the Board will meet regularly to consider
major matters affecting the operations of the Company, the Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company and believes that this structure will enable the Company
to make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes
responsibility for its leadership and control and be collectively
responsible for promoting the Company’s success by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. Directors take decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business and regularly reviews the contribution required from
a Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing
them that are commensurate with their role and the Board
responsibilities. The Board includes a balanced composition of
Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors so
that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which
can effectively exercise independent judgement.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following
directors:

Executive Directors

Lai Pei Wor (Chairman)
Chan Yau Wah (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mak Kwai Wing

Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

Pong Suet Hing (appointed on 30 April 2023)
Kung Fan Cheong (resigned on 30 April 2023)

Pong Suet Hing, who has been appointed as the Independent Non-
executive Director during the financial year ended 31 December
2023, has obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of
the Listing Rules as regards the requirements under the Listing
Rules that are applicable to her as a director of a listed issuer and
the possible consequences of making a false declaration or giving
false information to the Stock Exchange on 24 April 2023, and she
has confirmed she understood her obligations as a director of a
listed issuer.

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
representing more than one-third of the Board with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities and delegation of functions

The Board of the Company is collectively responsible for the
oversight of the management of the business and affairs of the
Group with the objective of enhancing shareholders’ value. The
overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day management of
the Company’s business to the executive directors. In addition,
the Board has established Board committees and has delegated to
these Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

The Board focuses its attention on matters affecting the
Company’s overall strategic policies, finances and shareholders.
These include financial statements, dividend policy, significant
changes in accounting policy, the annual operating budget, certain
material contracts, strategies for future growth, major financing
arrangements and major investments, risk management strategies,
treasury policies and group structure.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over the
management. The Board members are fully committed to their
roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the shareholders’
value in the long run, and has aligned the Group’s goals and
directions with the prevailing economic and market conditions.
Daily operations and administration are delegated to the
management.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of director’s liability.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year ended 31 December 2023, five regular board
meetings were held at approximately quarterly intervals for
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance,
and considering and approving the overall strategies and policies
of the Company and one annual general meeting was held. The
attendance record of each director is set out below:

Attendance of annual
general meeting in

BEE

EEBRRRRAFAE

SRHEERESHERE
BE - Z-_=F+-_A=+—BIFERXN"

EEgCBTARENES

 HEFER

At st RN R E 2 B 15 RS ERER

WEERIERRNT 2 EER
BE8RT—

RIS N IR R K
RERBFRE - BEFZHRE

RERIAN

Attendance of
Board meetings

2023 in 2023

—E-=FHE —EC=F4HE

Name of director EEHE BERAF KGR EEEEBNRE

Lai Pei Wor A 1/1 5/5

Chan Yau Wah PR 2 1/1 5/5

Mak Kwai Wing BEL 1/1 5/5

Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph s 1/1 5/5
Pong Suet Hing EER(R_ZT==%F

(appointed on 30 April 2023) MA=+HZE) 1/1 2/2
Kung Fan Cheong LEE (W= —_=F

(resigned on 30 April 2023) WA=+H&T) 0/0 3/3

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION TEERHM

The Company has not set up a corporate governance committee.
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out hereunder:

(a)

develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors of the Company;

review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

review these terms of reference and their effectiveness and
from time to time recommend any necessary changes.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are
not separate and are performed by Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since the
Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Company, the Board considers that this structure
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company and believes that
this structure will enable the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and efficiently.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive directors have contracts
with the Company for a specified period of two years and are
appointed subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws and the CG Code.

Each independent non-executive director has made an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company and the Company
considers these directors to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. None of the directors is related to each other.

Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph, who have been serving as Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company for more than 9 years,
have confirmed his independence with reference to the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph is still independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and
will continue to bring valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.
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BOARD INDEPENDENCE EVALUATION

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism during the year which sets out the processes and
procedures to ensure a strong independent element on the Board,
which allows the Board effectively exercises independent judgment
to better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board
effectiveness, maximise strengths, and identify the areas that need
improvement or further development. The evaluation process
also clarifies what actions of the Company need to be taken to
maintain and improve the Board performance.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the
Board will conduct annual review on its independence.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors has
completed the independence evaluation in the form of form-filling
individually.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Independence
Evaluation Mechanism and the results were satisfactory.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules. Based on
specific enquiry of the Company’s directors, all directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who,
because of such office or employment, are likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company recommends directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All directors also
participate in continuous professional development programmes
such as external seminars organised by qualified professionals or
reading books and articles, to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A record
of the training received by the respective directors are kept by the
company secretary of the Company.

The individual training record of each director received for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is summarised below:

FEEXRRR

RWPEEZHBEEERR  ARARER
ESHEHBCEREUBRREERRSE
ZHBLEEE 2REENALERESR
EERFE WHAEMEEALAENR
O BEXEAMEEARNE  HFE
HEFSLARMBERIREMNBE 2B K
et RESMEX ZIEBIIREAARRA
NEWEFE

BE_Z-_=f+_-_A=+—HB1LFE"
BEEMEIEIZ@EB MR nT

Number of training received
that are relevant to

the business or

directors’ duties

EZAHEBIESREZ

Name of director EEng AR B
Lai Pei Wor RIS AN 1
Chan Yau Wah PR & 5 1
Mak Kwai Wing BEL 2
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =8 1
Pong Suet Hing EEM(R_ZT_=%F

(appointed on 30 April 2023) MA=+HZ%E) 1
Kung Fan Cheong LEE(RZZEZ=F

(resigned on 30 April 2023) WA=+H#T) 2

All the directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Tsang Wai Lun (“Mr. Tsang”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 3 May 2019. Pursuant to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tsang has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training for the year ended 31 December
2023.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website (except Executive Committee) and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the current members of each Board committee
(except Executive Committee) are independent non-executive
directors, while all the members of the Executive Committee are
executive directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee currently comprises 2 executive directors,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and Mr. Chan Yau Wah. The
Executive Committee shall meet as it may consider appropriate.

The duties of the Executive Committee are as follows:

(@) to monitor the execution of the Company’s strategic plans
and operations of all business units of the Company;

(b) to discuss and make decisions on matters relating to the
management and operations of the Company;

(c) to exercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board
between its regular meetings; and

(d) to review and discuss any other matters as may from time to
time be delegated to it by the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has complied with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules in
relation to the composition of the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee currently comprises 3 members, all of
them are independent non-executive directors. The members of
the Remuneration Committee are Ms. Pong Suet Hing (chairman)
(appointed on 30 April 2023), Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, Mr. Li Yuen
Kwan, Joseph and Mr. Kung Fan Cheong (resigned on 30 April
2023).

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings.
The attendance record of each Remuneration Committee member
is set out below:

el ESSh
ARFMFMEE G ZEKEET LR
BI$3.2506RE - HMEERBAMB=H
REMK HRKEHRBUFNTES -
FMESEREREEMLL () (B
ToZFMA=STBER) BERKEE
FRBfERIEERE (R-B- =GN
A=Z+B#&ME) -

AEER FMEESGCRTMAGE -
FMZEeRRBZHFELENT

Attendance of Remuneration
Committee meeting in 2023

“E-=FHE

Name of director BEENSE FHZEESERAH
Pong Suet Hing (Chairman) BEM(E)(RTE_=F

(appointed on 30 April 2023) MA=+HZE) 0/0

Mak Kwai Wing BEL 2/2

Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph Bk 2/2
Kung Fan Cheong (Chairman) LES(FE) R-_Z =%

(resigned on 30 April 2023) MA=+HEE) 2/2

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management's
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management, which should include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(d)

(e)

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;

to review and sanction new or amended salary, incentive
bonus and retirement benefit policies for the Group which
are substantial in their cost and have an impact on a
significant proportion of employees; and

to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations
to the Board on executive directors’ remuneration packages and terms
of employment. The Remuneration Committee also formulated and
evaluated the remuneration policy and structure for the directors and
senior management of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Remuneration Policy

The Company’s remuneration policy is to ensure that the
remuneration offered to employees, including Directors and senior
management, is based on skill, knowledge, responsibilities and
involvement in the Company’s affairs. The remuneration packages
of Executive Directors are also determined with reference to the
Company’s performance and profitability, the prevailing market
conditions and the performance or contribution of each Executive
Director. The remuneration for the Executive Directors comprises
basic salary, pensions and discretionary bonus. The remuneration
policy for Independent Non-executive Directors is to ensure that
Independent Non-executive Directors are adequately compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company's
affairs, including their participation in Board committees. The
remuneration for the Independent Non-executive Directors mainly
comprises Director’'s fee which is determined with reference to
their duties and responsibilities by the Board. Individual Directors
and senior management have not been involved in deciding their
own remuneration.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

FMESS (&)
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ARRABNFHBREERRAB T (BHRE
EMEHREEAR) REMFBER G -
HME - BEEMERAREHN2EIEE - #
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Number of individuals

Remuneration by band 5 B 4B B ARl A™
Nil to HK$1,000,000 #£21,000,00058 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,000/% 7T 1

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001;8 7L 2,500,000/ 7T -

RIE TR B M $RD278 T 0 B2 G B 2 5 B
RO MNESR ZE— FFBHN
REFAFZRE M BEHRRM TR -

Further particulars regarding directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has complied with Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules
in relation to the composition of the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee currently comprises 1 executive director,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and 3 independent non-
executive directors, namely, Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, Mr. Li Yuen
Kwan, Joseph, Ms. Pong Suet Hing (appointed on 30 April 2023)
and Mr. Kung Fan Cheong (resigned on 30 April 2023).

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings.
The attendance record of each Nomination Committee member is
set out below:

REZEE®
RARIRBEZES ZHAKBET ETR
BIZE3.27AIKRE - IRREES A%

WITES MENEE(ZTE) =28
FHMITESMAN - BREEREL - T8

FE EEPNLE(R_Z-_=FMA=1
BERE)MAFEERE(R T _=FNA
=t HEE -

KFEERXN RELZESERITMADH -
REZEESKREZHNELENT -

Attendance of Nomination
Committee meeting in 2023

“EC=FHE
Name of director BEENE REZESERARHY
Lai Pei Wor (Chairman) BB (EE) 2/2
Mak Kwai Wing BEE 2/2
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph k= 2/2
Pong Suet Hing ESH(R_T==F
(appointed on 30 April 2023) MA=+HZ%E) 0/0
Kung Fan Cheong LEER=ZE==
(resigned on 30 April 2023) MA=+HEHE) 2/2

The duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@) to review the structure, size and diversity (including but
not limited to age, gender, skills, professional and industry
experience, educational background, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(e) to review the board diversity policy, as appropriate and
the measurable objectives that the board has set for
implementing the board diversity policy, and monitor the
progress on achieving the objectives;

(f)  to review the Director Nomination Policy; and

(g) to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage. A diverse
Board will include and make good use of differences in the age,
gender, skills, professional and industry experience, educational
background, knowledge and length of service. These differences
will be considered in determining the optimum composition of
the Board and when possible should be balanced appropriately.
All appointments of the members of the Board are made on merit
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Diversity at all levels have been shown to improve retention and
reduce the costs associated with employee turnover. In a diverse
workplace, employees are more likely remain loyal when they feel
respected, valued for their unique contribution and the importance
of being able to attract, retain and motivate employees from the
widest possible pool of available talent. Employees are more likely
to feel comfortable and happy in an environment where inclusivity
is a priority. Equality in the workplace is important for encouraging
workers from all backgrounds to feel confident in their ability and
achieve their best. The Company are committed to diversity at all
levels, including gender, age, cultural and educational background,
or professional experience. The recruitment and selection practices
at all levels are appropriately structured so that a diverse range
of candidates are considered. The Company would identify and
provide the relevant professional training programs that will assist
in the development of a broader and more diverse pool of skilled
and experienced employees and that, in time, their skills will
prepare them for senior management and board positions.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy (continued)

The Nomination Committee of the Company regularly reviews
and assesses the composition of the Board and makes
recommendations to the Board on appointment of new directors
of the Company. The Nomination Committee also oversees the
conduct of the annual review of the effectiveness of the Board and
will give adequate consideration to this Policy including gender
balance of the directors and senior management and their direct
reports, and its progress in achieving its diversity objectives.

Selection of individuals will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, skills,
professional and industry experience, educational background,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected individuals will
bring to the Board.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,
the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least one of the members of the Board shall be female;

(B) at least 33% of the members of the Board shall be non-
executive Directors or independent non-executive Directors;

(C) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

(D) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(E) at least one of the members of the Board shall have more than
10 years of experience in the industry he/she is specialised in;

(F) at least one of the members of the Board shall have China-
related work experience.

The Board is committed to improving the diversity of the Board and
achieved the above objectives in 2023.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
The following table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of
the Group, including the Board and senior management as at the
date of this Annual Report:

REZES ()
MR Z Tt

AAREREESEERNERZ T -
TRENBEAFRAPAEEET (B
EFELRREERE)WMERLLA -

Female Male

o3 B

Board 0 20% (1) 80% (4)
Senior Management SREBAS 0% (0) 100% (2)
Management EIEAB 8.33% (1) 91.67% (11)
Other employees HiHBE 67.60% (480) 32.40% (230)
Overall workforce BEEsT 66.12% (482) 33.88% (247)

The Board is committed to improving greater gender diversity in
the Board and senior management and appointed one female
Director on 30 April 2023.

Details on the gender ratio of the Group together with relevant
data can be found on pages 47 to 49 of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report 2023.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY
1. Nomination and Appointment of Directors
(a) Criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the following criteria should be considered:

o Character and integrity.

o Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity
aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)

1. Nomination and Appointment of Directors
(continued)

(a) Criteria (continued)

Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Hong Kong
Listing Rules and whether the candidate would
be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can
bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills,
experience, independence and gender diversity.

Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or
Board committee(s) of the Company.

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to
the Company’s business and succession plan and
where applicable, may be adopted and/or amended
by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee
from time to time for nomination of directors and
succession planning.

2. Nomination Process

(a) Appointment of New Director

(i)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment
of new director and the biographical information
(or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)

2.

Nomination Process (continued)

(a) Appointment of New Director (continued)

(b)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Where appropriate,

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference
check of each candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then
recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting
of the Company, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

the Nomination Committee

and/or the Board should make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.

Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should review the overall contribution and service
to the Company of the retiring director and the
level of participation and performance on the
Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should also review and determine whether the
retiring director continues to meet the criteria as
set out above.

The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should then make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of director at the general meeting.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)
2. Nomination Process (continued)

(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting
(continued)

Where the board proposes a resolution to elect or re-
elect a candidate as director at the general meeting, the
relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed
in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules
and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The appointment of new directors will be considered and approved
by the Board and all new directors are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment
and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years pursuant to the CG Code.

Mr. Chan Yau Wah and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph shall retire
by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the next forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-laws 85(1) and 85(2).

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors
standing for re-election at the next forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 24 April 2024 contains detailed
information of the directors standing for re-election.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
the Company’s auditor, Messrs. Mazars CPA Limited, is set out as
follows:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in
relation to the composition of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee of the Company comprises three independent non-
executive directors. The current members of the Audit Committee
are Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph, Ms. Pong
Suet Hing (appointed on 30 April 2023) and Mr. Kung Fan Cheong
(resigned on 30 April 2023). The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Mak Kwai Wing who has appropriate accounting professional
qualifications. Code Provision D.3.3 stipulates that members of
the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a year with the
Company’s auditors. During the year, there were two meetings
held between the Audit Committee and the Company’s auditors.
Besides, the Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year.
During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The
attendance record of each Audit Committee member is set out
below:

BEREES
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ZoOANFEERN BERZEBEGLBITZAE
& BRZBEENBZHFELEWT

Attendance of Audit
Committee meetings in 2023

—E-=FHE

Name of director EEHE EREESERARHY

Mak Kwai Wing (Chairman) BEL(EE) 3/3

Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph =éh 3/3
Pong Suet Hing EEM(R_T_=%F

(appointed on 30 April 2023) MA=+HZF) 2/3
Kung Fan Cheong LEE(RZZEZ=F

(resigned on 30 April 2023) WA=+H#T) 1/3

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include
the review of the Group’s consolidated financial statements and
reporting process, risk management system and internal control
procedures. It also acts as an important link between the Board
and the Company’s auditors in matters within the scope of
the group audit. During the meetings held in 2023, the Audit
Committee had performed the following works:

(i) reviewed the directors’ report and audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
and consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
internal auditor or external auditor before submission to the
Board;

(i)  reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2023;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(iii) reviewed the re-appointment of the external auditor and the
nature and scope of audits;

(iv) reviewed and recommended for approval by the board the
2023 audit scope and fees;

(v)  reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

(vi) reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system; and

(vii) reviewed the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023. The directors ensure the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure the publication of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
55 to 60.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk management and
internal control systems are designed for managing risks rather
than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(continued)

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has overall
responsibilities for maintaining effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. During the year, the Board
conducted a review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems, covering
financial, operational, compliance control and risk management
functions. The Group’s system of internal control includes the
setting up of a management structure with limits of authority,
and is designed to help the Group achieve its business objectives,
protects its assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensures
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
and ensures compliance with relevant laws and regulations. After
reviewing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, the Board considers that the systems are effective and
adequate for the Group as a whole. The Board further considers that
there was no material issue relating to the Group’s risk management
and internal controls systems including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group
and that there were adequate staff with appropriate and adequate
qualifications and experience, resources for accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the year.

The internal control team of the Company plays a major role
in monitoring the risk management and internal controls of
the Group and reports directly to the Audit Committee. It has
full access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities, risk
management and internal controls. All types of audited reports are
circulated to the Audit Committee and key management, which
will follow up on any actions and measures taken to improve risk
management and internal controls on the recommendations by the
internal control team.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarized as follows:

o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s
business and operations.

o Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(continued)

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place.

o Reports the results of risk monitoring to the Audit Committee
and the Board regularly.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group's internal audit function is performed by an internal
audit team, which reports directly to the Audit Committee and
the Board on a periodical basis. The team conducts internal
audit reviews on material controls and compliance with policies
and procedures of the Group at both operational and corporate
levels. Plans for corrective actions and control improvement are
identified and communicated with operations management to
address any issues, non-compliance or deficiencies identified. The
team monitors the implementation of its recommendations by the
operations management and reports the outcome to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

DIVIDEND POLICY

o The board of directors of the Company adopt the policy that,
in recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value.

o The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio.

o The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the
Articles of the Association of the Company and all applicable
laws and regulations and the factors set out below.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

o The Board shall also take into account the following factors
of the Company and its subsidiaries when considering the
declaration and payment of dividends:

financial results;

- cash flow situation;

- business conditions and strategies;

—  future operations and earnings;

- capital requirements and expenditure plans;

- interests of shareholders;

- any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

- any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
o Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and

the Group and the conditions and factors as set out above,

dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for
a financial year or period:

interim dividend;

- final dividend;

special dividend; and

any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

o Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
shareholders’ approval.

o The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate.

o Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to
the Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements or circulars are not false
or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through
the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in
a clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has amended its Bye-
Laws. Details of the amendments are set out in the circular dated
26 April 2023 to the Shareholders. An up to date version of the
Company’s Bye-Laws is also available on the Company’s website
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees are
available to answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2024 Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) will be held on 24
May 2024. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least
21 clear business days before the AGM.

To promote effective communication with shareholders, the
Company maintains a website at www.kpihl.com, where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s financial information,
corporate governance code and other information are posted and
available for public access.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting ("SGM")

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, any one or more
member(s) (including a recognized clearing house (or its nominees))
holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition in aggregate
not less than one-tenth of the voting rights (on a one vote
per share basis) in the share capital of the Company may also
make a requisition to convene a special general meeting and
add resolutions to the meeting agenda at the expense of such
requisitionist(s). Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionists themselves may convene a physical
meeting at only one location which will be the Principal Meeting
Place in accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The requisition must specify
the purpose of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the head office of the Company
in Hong Kong.

If the requisition is in order, the company secretary will ask the
Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered members. On
the contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the members concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be
convened as requested.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS (continued)

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings other
than a Proposal for Election of Director

MTREFEXARBZABMA BRZE
—HN—FREVEMERERLERAR -

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s bye-laws,
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and
regulation:

1.

The Company holds an AGM every year, and may hold a
general meeting known as a SGM whenever necessary.

ARBEFET-RABERBEASR
ARUERETESRRFIAGZ
BRAE -

2. Member(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one- KRR ZBROBFEERNLDREER
twentieth of the total voting rights of all members having the ERREAGRECRERERER
right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 B+ ()TN P R100% [
members, can submit a written request stating the resolution RoOAERSBAEN R R IES K& )
intended to be moved at the AGM; or a statement of not BLABBELEHABK  H—HTF
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to W1,000F - BAEMESEREE S
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at EHA RN EERRAG LEECEE
a particular general meeting. 2B o

3. The written request/statements must be signed by the Emmk/ BREVEALEERES
member(s) concern and deposited at the Company’s E - WHRKREBAFREH TR E
registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, EH(HMBRBERZRBE) IBRR
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal office at Units BERGA AR —EE8 (HAE
2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, AE M) FRA AR R TS
N.T., Hong Kong, for the attention of the company secretary FzClarendon House, 2 Church Street,
of the Company, not less than six weeks before the AGM in Hamilton HM11, Bermuda & H 3 Z ¢
the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and FRA B R ZRRNBESZEFF
not less than one week before the general meeting in the 02312304-06E - WHARBAK R A
case of any other requisition. ZREIME o

4. If the written request is in order, the company secretary will WEERKBEE  ARMEBEX

ask the Board of the Company (i) to include the resolution in
the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the statement for
the general meeting, provided that the member(s) concerned
have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined
by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in serving the notice of the resolution and/or circulating
the statement submitted by the member(s) concerned
in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered members. On the contrary, if the requisition is
invalid or the member(s) concerned have failed to deposit
sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for the
said purposes, the member(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will
not be included in the agenda for the AGM; or the statement
will not be circulated for the general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS (continued)
Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Members who have enquires about the above procedures or have
enquires to put to the Board may write to the company secretary
at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai
Chung, N.T., Hong Kong.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Units 2304-06, 23/F., Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road,
Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chairman/Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2481 3098

Email: enquiry@kpihl.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law. Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2276
3000 for any assistance.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholder meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholder meeting will be taken
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after the shareholder meeting.

RERER (&)
MEFSRHES

Wt REERERNEESE
HRERANEAMARMERR - ik
BB BT BB UK B8R E N 02318
2304-06F °

M AARBENGREEABRRERSH -

BREAIGATHRE X Pl BRI ENR

Al BB REBRLARIESSH
EFH023122304-06F
(WA X/ RAE)

BH: (852) 2481 3098

BFEM - enquiry@kpihl.com
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS (continued)
Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy.
The policy aims at ensuring Shareholders are provided with prompt
and equal access to information about the Company (including
but not limited to its financial performance, corporate goals
and strategies, significant developments, corporate governance
and risk exposure). The Board reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy and the
results were satisfactory.

The Company has established a number of channels for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

(a) Corporate Communication

“Corporate Communication” as defined under the Listing
Rules refers to any document issued or to be issued by the
Company for the information or action of holders of any
of its securities, including but not limited to the following
documents of the Company: (a) the Directors’ report, annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditor’s report and,
where applicable, its summary financial report; (b) the interim
report and, where applicable, its summary interim report; (c)
a notice of meeting; (d) a circular; and (e) a proxy form. The
Corporate Communication of the Company will be published
on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkex.com.hk) in a
timely manner as required by the Listing Rules. Corporate
Communication will be provided to Shareholders and non-
registered holders of the Company’s securities in both
English and Chinese versions or where permitted, in a single
language, in a timely manner as required by the Listing Rules.

(b) Announcements and Other Documents pursuant
to the Listing Rules

The Company shall publish announcements (on inside
information, corporate actions and transactions etc.) and
other documents (e.g. Bye-laws) on the Stock Exchange's
website in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders’ Communication Policy (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Corporate Website

Any information or documents of the Company posted on
the Stock Exchange’s website will also be published on the
Company’s website (www.kpihl.com).

Shareholders’ Meetings

The annual general meeting and other general meetings
of the Company are primary forum for communication
between the Company and its Shareholders. The Company
shall provide Shareholders with relevant information
on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a
timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s). Shareholders are encouraged to participate in
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote
at the meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable
to attend the meetings. Where appropriate or required,
the Chairman of the Board and other Board members, the
chairmen of board committees or their delegates, and the
external auditors should attend general meetings of the
Company to answer Shareholders’ questions (if any).

Shareholders’ Enquiries
Enquiries about Shareholdings

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, via its online holding
enquiry service at www.tricoris.com, or send email to
is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com or call its hotline at 2980
1333, or go in person to its public counter at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

Enquiries about Corporate Governance or Other
Matters to be put to the Board and the Company

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries. Shareholders may send any enquiries
to the Board by email: enquiry@kpihl.com or by post to
Units 2304-06, 23/F., Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai
Chung, N.T., Hong Kong (For the attention of the Chairman/
Company Secretary).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Pei Wor, aged 67, is the chairman and managing director
of the Company. Mr. Lai was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 13 September 1996. He is the founder of the
Group and has over 42 years of experience in the industry. He
is responsible for the Group’s overall strategic planning, policy
making and financial management. He has been a director of Hi-
Tech Precision Industrial Limited since 1984, a director of HTP
Industrial Limited (formerly known as Hideki Electronics Limited)
since 1989, a director of Cokeen Development Limited and K. S.
(China) Electronics Manufactory Limited since 1990, a director of
K & P Group (Holdings) Limited since 1994, a director of Hi-Tech
Investment Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property Holdings Limited
since 1997, a director of E-Dotcom Limited since 2001, a director
of Hi-Tech (China) Investment Limited and F@(PUNEFBRER
A] since 2002, a director of Mars Field Limited and a director and
legal representative of HILITEHEFHRAF since 2010 and
acted as a director of Technology Trends International Limited
since 2001 and a secretary since 2009. He has also been appointed
as a director of Sun Ngai Plastic Products Factory Limited, a director
of Hunpex Limited, and a director and legal representative of $£4H

ERME(RIINER A A since 2013,
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Chan Yau Wah, aged 65, is the deputy chairman of the
Company. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 13 September 1996. He is also a general
manager in Hi-Tech Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan joined
the Group in December 1990. He is responsible for the planning
and management in production activities. He holds a higher
diploma in production and industrial engineering from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and a diploma in management studies from the
Hong Kong Management Association. He has over 42 years of
experience in the industry. He has been a director of HTP Industrial
Limited (formerly known as Hideki Electronics Limited) and K & P
Group (Holdings) Limited since 1994, a director of K. S. (China)
Electronics Manufactory Limited since 1995, a director of Hi-Tech
Investment Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property Holdings Limited
since 1997, a director of Technology Trends International Limited
since 2001, a director of Hi-Tech (China) Investment Limited and
(R IUEFBERAT since 2002 and acted as a director of
E-Dotcom Limited since 2009. He has also been appointed as a
director of Sun Ngai Plastic Products Factory Limited, a director
of Hunpex Limited, and a supervisor of $RIZERHT(RIINBRRAF]
since 2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, BSoc.Sc., ATIHK, FCPA (Aust), aged 74,
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a degree of
Bachelor of Social Sciences. He is also a Fellow of CPA Australia
and an Associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Mak
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 3 July 2017. Mr. Mak has over 41 years of experience
in the taxation field. In July 2006, Mr. Mak joined Mazars Tax
Services Limited (“Mazars Tax”) as an executive director, was a
managing director of Mazars Tax from January 2008 to August
2014 and was a Senior Advisor of Mazars Tax from September
2014 to June 2017. Before joining Mazars Tax, Mr. Mak was
a tax principal at Ernst & Young and took early retirement in
January 2004. Currently, Mr. Mak is an independent non-executive
director of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
00882) and a member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior
Executives Association. Previously, Mr. Mak served as the governor
of Rotary International District 3450 and the Chairman of the Tax
Specialization Development Working Group of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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EENRGREBEAEHEFS

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph, aged 71, graduated from State
University of New York at Buffalo in the United States of America
and holds a bachelor of science in business administration degree.
Mr. Li was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
the Company on 24 August 2005. After working in the business
sector for 9 years, he joined the Secretariat of Federation of Hong
Kong Industries in 1985 as an assistant director and in 1992 he
was appointed as a director of the Secretariat of Federation of
Hong Kong Industries from which post he retired in January 2005.
He has over 35 years experience in serving the manufacturing
industry of Hong Kong.

Ms. Pong Suet Hing, aged 70, is currently a director of Odyssey
Group (International) Limited, a human resources consultancy
company in Hong Kong. Ms. Pong is an affiliate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management
(“HKIHRM"). She obtained the Professional Diploma in Human
Resource Management from the Hong Kong Management
Association in 2018 and obtained several certificates in connection
with Hong Kong employment law and an advanced certificate
in HR legal compliance from HKIHRM during 2016 to 2018. Ms.
Pong was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 30 April 2023. Ms. Pong has almost 20 years
of experiences in human resources and has served as consultant,
associate director, director and general manager in various
human resources consulting companies in Hong Kong to provide
recruitment, payroll, staff training, human resources solutions
and compliance services to corporate clients since 2003. Ms.
Pong also has vast experiences in the financial field. She worked
in several banks in Hong Kong for approximately 30 years from
1971 to 2003 and served positions including Department Head
— Branch Banking, Vice President and Manager, and Branch
Manager in retail banking with experiences covering management,
operation and compliance. She also worked with several wealth
management entities in Hong Kong where she had experiences
in sales of investment and insurance products and management.
She obtained the Professional Diploma in Personal Financial
Planning from Li Ka Shing Institute of Professional and Continuing
Education of The Open University of Hong Kong (now known as
The Hong Kong Metropolitan University) in 2003 and is a licensed
insurance intermediary of Insurance Authority in Hong Kong. Since
March 2023, Ms. Pong is an independent non-executive director
of Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1046).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Man Kit, aged 64, is the marketing director of precision
parts and components segment of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in 1984. He is responsible for the marketing and sales. He
has over 40 years of experience in the industry.

Mr. Li Kam Keung, aged 63, is the production manager of the
precision parts and components segment in Kong Hau factory,
Zhongshan. Mr. Li joined the Group in 1985. He is responsible for
the operation and management in production segment. He has
over 37 years of experience in the industry.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries were the manufacture
and sale of precision parts and components (comprising keypads,
synthetic rubber and plastic components and parts). There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to
159.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK8
cents (2022: HK6 cents) per ordinary share on Thursday, 11 July
2024 to the shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on Wednesday, 5 June 2024. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements
as an allocation of retained profit within the equity section of the
statement of financial position.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 21 May 2024 to Friday, 24 May 2024, both dates
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 24 May
2024, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 20 May 2024.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR FINAL DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 31 May 2024 to Wednesday, 5 June 2024, both dates
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the above final dividend of the
Company, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 30 May 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2023 was a tough year for the Group, which was impacted by the
ongoing war in Ukraine, persistent inflation pressure and interest
rate hike. The challenging environment weakened the consumer
sentiment, particularly in Europe, which was the major market for
the Group’s top customers. In addition, the weak market demand
affected the Group’s customers’ initiatives to undertake new
project development, leading to fewer new revenue streams for
the Group. As a result, the Group’s turnover dropped as compared
with the year 2022. Furthermore, strong United States dollar
increased the volatility of Renminbi (“RMB"). Hence, the Group
recorded an unrealised fair value loss of approximately HK$9.8
million (2022: HK$4.2 million) in the forward currency contracts
expiring in years 2024 and 2025. These contracts were entered to
manage the influence of the volatility of RMB on manufacturing
costs for years 2024 and 2025, which had no impact to the
Group’s cash flow for year 2023.

For the precision parts and components segment, the turnover
decreased by 31.7% to approximately HK$185.8 million as
compared with the year 2022. If excluded the above unrealised fair
value net loss of HK$9.8 million (2022: HK$4.2million) on forward
currency contracts, the segment loss was approximately HK$14.5
million (2022: profit of HK$7.6 million). The segment loss was
mainly due to the decline in revenue that led to the lower capacity
utilisation of the Group’s production facilities, while the direct cost
of sales including factory overhead and administrative expenses
were not proportionately reduced to the same extend.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The gross profit margin of the Group in 2023 had decreased by
6.5 percentage points to 13.8% as compared with the year 2022,
mainly due to the decline in turnover. The selling and distribution
costs decreased by 13.4% to approximately HK$16.8 million, while
the administrative and other expenses slightly decreased by 1.0%
to approximately HK$23.2 million. The financial costs maintained
at HK$0.5 million, due to the rise of market interest rate in 2023,
despite the decline in financing activities.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2023
amounted to approximately HK$185.8 million, representing a
decrease of 31.7% from the previous year. Overall gross profit
amounted to approximately HK$25.6 million, representing a
decrease of 53.6% from the previous year. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$26.1 million (2022:
HK$0.5 million).

Basic loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
HK9.77 cents (2022: HK0.19 cent) per share.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural
resources. We strive to minimize our environmental impact by
saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and
other materials. We also require factories operate in compliance
with the relevant environmental regulations and rules and possess
all necessary permission and approval from the relevant Chinese
regulators. Emails and electronic messages have replaced letters
for most formal and informal communications, both externally and
internally. Further details are set out in the environmental, social
and governance report which will be published on the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s and the Company’s websites.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries while the Company itself is listed on the Stock
Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Bermuda. During the year ended 31 December
2023, we have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Bermuda.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures that all staff are
reasonably remunerated and it continues to improve and review
and update regularly on its policies for remuneration and benefits,
training, occupational health and safety. The Group maintains a
good relationship with its customers. Customers are encouraged
to make recommendations with the aim of improving products
quality. The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual
basis.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include
strategic, commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial
budget at the end of each financial year based on their knowledge
to the external environments and a number of forecasts
and estimates. Given the change of unforeseeable external
environments in the industry, the Group is facing significant
strategic risks on its capital expenditures and working capital
requirements when changing the strategic plans to adopt the
unexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing keen competition in the market. To maintain
the Group's competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership
strategy as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other
competitors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise,
resulting from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and
compliance matters, are adequately managed.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 32 to consolidated
financial statements heading “Financial risk management
objectives and policies”.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 160.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in notes 25 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, before proposed dividend, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$31,432,241 (2022: HK$25,731,132) of which the payment
of HK8 cents per ordinary share was recommenced as final
dividend for the year (2022: HK6 cents). During the year ended
31 December 2023, the Company declared and paid an interim
dividend HK2 cents per ordinary share for the year and paid final
dividend HK6 cents per ordinary share for 2022. In addition,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$50,856,881 (2022: HK$50,856,881) may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers
accounted for 49.8% of the total sales of the Group for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 23.3%. Purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted
for 27.4% of the total purchases of the Group for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
6.8%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors

Lai Pei Wor
Chan Yau Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Mak Kwai Wing

Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

Pong Suet Hing (appointed on 30 April 2023)
Kung Fan Cheong (resigned on 30 April 2023)

In accordance with bye-laws 85(1) and 85(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr. Chan Yau Wah and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph
shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the next forthcoming annual general meeting.

Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph and Ms. Pong
Suet Hing, the independent non-executive directors, are appointed
for a period of two years. The Company has received annual
confirmations of independence from Mr. Mak Kwai Wing, Mr. Li
Yuen Kwan, Joseph and Ms. Pong Suet Hing as at the date of this
report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 39 to 42 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2024, and the contract can be terminated by either party
giving to the other not less than six months’ nor more than seven
months’ prior notice in writing.

Apart from foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
next forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board of the
Company with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion that no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significant in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company’s subsidiary was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity linked agreements into which the Company entered
subsisted at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of the directors in the share
capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
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Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FERGBE GO RERMEE

Percentage of

Directly Founder of a the Company’s

beneficially discretionary issued share

owned trust Total capital
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Name of director EEns ExBEEA BRI A my B zED

Lai Pei Wor FREEA 36,844,000 *97,242,000 134,086,000 50.22

Chan Yau Wah PR 20,000 - 20,000 0.00

36,864,000 97,242,000 134,106,000 50,22

Note: MisE -

* Details of Mr. Lai Pei Wor’s interests are set out in the section headed * MEMAEZEEFHRTIXZ[EERER

“Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests and
short positions in shares and underlying shares” above, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to director or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons or corporations
(other than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
were as follows:

Long positions:
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Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FERAHUE  SHREEME
Percentage
Through of the
Directly spouse or Company's
beneficially minor Beneficiary issued
owned children of a trust Total  share capital
LE
E# (2N fFRZ BEATRE
Name #e BEBEA KEEFR ZHEA - ARl
Celaya (PTC) Limited (Note @) Celaya (PTC) Limited (i) - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42
Trident Corporate Services Trident Corporate Services - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42

(B.V.L) Limited (Note b) (B.V.1.) Limited (ff3£b)

Lai Yiu Chun (Note ) iz (W) 3,150,000 21,450,000 - 24,600,000 9.21
Lam Lin Chu (Note ¢) MER (B 22,434,000 2,166,000 - 24,600,000 9.21

K & P International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2023




SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(a)  Celaya (PTC) Limited holds 97,242,000 shares in its capacity as trustee of
The Lai Family Unit Trust, of which all units are held by Trident Corporate
Services (B.V.l.) Limited in its capacity as trustee of The Lai Family Trust,
a discretionary trust of which the issue of Mr. Lai Pei Wor is discretionary
objects.

(b) The shares referred to herein relate to the same parcel of shares referred
to in note (a) above.

(c) Ms. Lam Lin Chu is the wife of Mr. Lai Yiu Chun, who is a brother of Mr.
Lai Pei Wor. Both Ms. Lam Lin Chu and Mr. Lai Yiu Chun are declaring
interests in the same parcel of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person,
other than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set
out in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year, which constitute exempted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under the Main Board
Listing Rules, are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EEERE

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS EHFTREEMRX

No permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year, AFERSARE B HWEGEAQG L
or is in force at the date of this report, for the benefit of a then BEHFEE (EmmAAAFEMIEL)
director or a director of the Company (whether made by the SHHEWBAREREEREEE (WHAR
Company or otherwise) or a then director or a director of its  BIEH) FIzE M A 2 ERF A BEFE o &
subsidiary (if made by the Company). The Company has arranged RQAIELZHHREAEEESLSAME ~
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for HEEZEZNaHBEETRRE

the Directors and officers of the Group.

AUDITORS = E B

Mazars CPA Limited will retire as auditor of the Company at the FHERR(FE) GTMELMER QG
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and a REERITZREBEFEAS FREUAE—

resolution for their reappointment as auditor of the Company will BEBEARQAT R 2REEZEN L
be proposed at such annual general meeting. MRRBEFRE LIRZ -

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD KREFS

Lai Pei Wor *E

Chairman FELE A

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024 B ZENF=A=-+=H
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of K & P International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K & P
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the "Group”) set out on pages 61 to 159, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HEAEBRZRERAAZERR
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Independent Auditor’s Report ontinued

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined the matter described below
to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our auditor’s
report.

Key Audit Matter
HRETFTBRAMOET

Valuation of land and buildings

1T HREFZ14E

Refer to notes 3 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements
A2 E T HRE N 33513

As at 31 December 2023, land and buildings held by
the Group were stated at fair value of HK$139,919,000.

FARETER

RRESTFAERERMANFERAE - R
RUAMGE AR BERRNBIAR/EEN
EH - REEHENRMABABREAH
BHREAMMARAKRE  MEAMIEY
ZEFREHMBINER - ZMEEET
AFESARKMANRE G ENEREFT
$IH -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMWEF AR ERRETSEE

Our key audit procedures over valuation of land and
buildings included:

BAE L REFEEMELNBEREAEFEHE

Significant estimation and judgement are required by

management to determine the fair value of the land
and buildings, including the determination of valuation
techniques and the selection of different inputs in
the models. Management has engaged independent
professionally qualified valuer (the “Valuer”) whose
work has been relied on in the estimation of the fair
value of the land and buildings. Therefore, the valuation
is considered as a key audit matter because of the
significance of the judgement and amounts involved.
RZZE_=F+A=+—H BESEFEzLHMKE
FURTFEETIRR139,919,0008 7T - EBERIELHE
RAb T R #6815 & H A E A KEENR & AR
ZERAUNEFR T REF I AFEE EBEEINE
BYSEREEGEM ([HERM]) - LEBEITERME
A kBF 2 AFEE - Bt [EBRASHH
REeREABMKRABBETFE-

Understanding and evaluating management’s key
controls over the fair value assessment process.
TREHEERER D FEE (GRENERE
il 73 0% o

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer.
LA ERABE e REHME -

Assessing the appropriateness of the work of
the Valuer by making enquiries and considering
the relevance and reasonableness of key
assumptions and methods used, and the
relevance and accuracy of the source data used.
AGEEMEANTEETENSEERERZSE
ARRENEERSEN RANFERMAE
FIRR A8 B R e o
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Independent Auditor’s Report ontinued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2023 annual report of the Company but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

H ftb & 8
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Independent Auditor’s Report ontinued

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ontinued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ontinued

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2024

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Hiu Fun

Practising Certificate number: PO5709
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
—_E_=F —_EF_-—
Notes HK$ HK$
M =E BT BT
REVENUE LON 5 185,786,572 272,102,667
Cost of sales k=N (160,137,871) (216,781,642)
Gross profit EM 25,648,701 55,321,025
Other income and gains H A U A K U 28 5 5,026,310 10,260,707
Fair value loss on financial liabilities — I&#AF(EBEE ABZEY
at fair value through profit or loss, THBEAFEE
net 18 - F 15 (9,772,199) (4,240,771)
Realised loss on financial liabilities at RAFEE;FAEBRZERZ
fair value through profit or loss, net cHEBEEREEES
F R 15 (6,931,539) (16,726,933)
Selling and distribution costs SHE RASHK A (16,793,778)  (19,388,230)
Administrative and other expenses TR REAME R (23,224,000)  (23,451,765)
Finance costs B & Bk AN 6 (520,757) (467,848)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAT (BE]) SRR 7 (26,567,262) 1,306,185
Income tax credit/(expense) FsgiEe,/ (FAx) 10 469,402 (1,809,221)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR BATBEEAEREE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF BB
THE COMPANY (26,097,860) (503,036)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ZARAT#EE AL ER
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY BB
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — EARREE GBI 12 (9.77) (0.19)

REERZERERDA
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_T-_—F+_A=t+—BIL=EE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
—EFE-= —_=__
HK$ HK$
BT BT
LOSS FOR THE YEAR KEEFHE (26,097,860) (503,036)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Ht2mHEIE
Items that will not be reclassified to BIEEFIEZBEZARZ
profit or loss: HE :
Surplus arising from revaluation of land  +i RIEF BfH A
and buildings 2,470,856 10,326,306
Income tax effect Frigtis & (723,276) (2,224,288)
1,747,580 8,102,018
Items that may be reclassified HEUEN I EZEEEARZ
subsequently to profit or loss: HAE :
Exchange differences on translation of REBINEBREEZ
foreign operations EH =% (4,781,289)  (14,714,866)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR BREAARFEFEHME2TE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX k] (3,033,709) (6,612,848)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR AATEBAGEFEE
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 2HEEEE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (29,131,569) (7,115,884)

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-T_=F+-A=+—H

At 31 December 2023

2023 2022
—_E_=F —E-=
Notes HK$ HK$
M =E BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE K&iE 13 192,445,519 201,318,417
Financial assets at fair value through 1R AP BEGABZEZ SR
profit or loss BE 15 680,000 1,259,976
Deferred tax assets R IBE E 24 1,498,974 698,974
Total non-current assets IERB)E EE B ET 194,624,493 203,277,367
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories e 16 47,911,358 81,933,176
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTSRIE - 2 E N E b MK
receivables I8 17 4,281,268 3,337,242
Trade receivables FE UG BR 18 18 35,895,370 57,813,339
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIAS 19 100,355,497 90,535,145
Tax recoverable A] Y B 7 58 600,219 12,194
Total current assets mE B EAR 189,043,712 233,631,096
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEEFABZEZ
through profit or loss B E 15 8,045,759 4,820,747
Trade payables FETBRTE 20 9,989,918 15,346,781
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEEt & & & £ i f& 1< 3518 21 29,647,646 33,001,348
Interest-bearing bank and other ERRThHEMEE
borrowings 22 7,000,000 4,591,980
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 297,727 282,307
Tax payables FES T E 560,398 1,824,861
Total current liabilities mE B EER 55,541,448 59,868,024
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 133,502,264 173,763,072
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRBARE
LIABILITIES 328,126,757 377,040,439
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (ontinved)

RZE_=F+-R=+—H
At 31 December 2023

2023 2022
—E-=F —_EF=-=
Notes HK$ HK$
B 2 BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 127,463 418,932
Deferred tax liabilities RAEF IR EE 24 27,092,944 26,369,668
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEBEABREKEZ
through profit or loss TRAE 15 1,146,464 =
Total non-current liabilities ERB B FEBET 28,366,871 26,788,600
Net assets BEFE 299,759,886 350,251,839
EQUITY =
Share capital P& 72X 25 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves s 26(a) 273,059,406 323,551,359
Total equity MR 299,759,886 350,251,839

F61ER1598 FIH N ELREPBRERER
—E-NME=A-_t+-_HEETeHER
BERMG WA TIALTRERESE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 159 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22
March 2024 and signed on its behalf by

Lai Pei Wor Chan Yau Wah
B PR
Director Director

EFE EE

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

Share Asset  Exchange
Share premium  Contributed  revaluation fluctuation Retained  Proposed Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve profits  dividends equity
BE EX
ke ROEER LN Bt RB&E RERR EERE ERiE
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT AT B AR BT B AR BT
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=£-F-A 26,700,480  *50,856,881 *660,651 *104,306,101  *(5,359,167) *157,066,605  *16,020,288 350,251,839
Loss for the year TEEER = - - - - (26,097,860) - (26,097,860)
Other comprehensive loss for ~ AEEE M2 ABE
the year:
Exchange differences on REENEREELZ
translation of foreign operations [ ¥ £3 - - - - (4781,289) - - (4781,289)
Surplus arising from revaluation B LHRER 2 EH
of land and buildings, net of tax 2 - - - 1,747,580 - - - 1,741,580
Total comprehensive loss AERLEEELE
for the year - - - 1741580 (4781,289)  (26,097,860) - (29131,569)
Transaction with owners; HEEAETLRS:
2022 final dividend paid F-F-—ERERE
(note 11) (Hiz11) - - - - - - (16,020,288)  (16,020,288)
2023 interim dividend paid FHZEz=E48ke
(note 11) (K1) - - - - - (5,340,09) - (5340,09)
2023 final dvidend proposed =B -=%#RHRE
(note 11) (Kist11) - - - - - (21360384) 21,360,384 -
Totaltransaction with owners ~ EEBAEZRHEE - - = = - (26700480) 5340006  (21,360,384)
At 31 December 2023 it it gl
=1-A 26,700,480  *50,856,881 *660,651 *106,053,681 *(10,140,456) *104,268,265  *21,360,384 299,759,886
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of @ RiEHMBERRERT ELREERFPES
HK$273,059,406 (2022: HK$323,551,359) in the consolidated statement 4R A fFE18273,059,4068 T (Z T =4 :
of financial position. 323,551,359/ L) °
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MEEZEE X
Consolidated Statement

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

of Changes in Equity (ontinued)

Share Asset Exchange
Share premium  Contributed  revaluation ~ fluctuation Retained Proposed Total
capital account surplus reserve TEserve profits dividends equity
£E EX
Rx  RGEER  SARR  EMER  RBEE  REEN  BERE  BHEE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT AT BT BT BT AL AL
At 1 January 2022 R_F_—F-A-H 26,700,480  *50,856,881 660,651 *96,204,083  *9355699 *189,610217  *21,360,384 394,748,395
Loss for the year TEEER - = - - = (503,036) - (503,036)
Other comprehensive loss for AEEEHEEER:
the year:
Exchange differences on BERNEREELY
translation of foreign operations [ ¥ £3 = = = - (14,714,866) - - (14,714,866)
Surplus arising from revaluation B LHRER 2 EH
of land and buildings, net of tax g - - - 8,102,018 - - - 8,102,018
Total comprehensive loss AERREFELE
for the year - - - 8,102,018 (14,714,866) (503,036) - (7,115,884)
Transaction with owners: HEEAETLRS:
2021 final dividend paid YH-E--£x8R8
(note 11) (H3E11) = = = = = - (21,360384)  (21,360,384)
2022 interim dividend paid Fff-E-—EagRE
(note 11) (K1) - - - - - (5340,0) - (5340,09)
2022 special diidend paid XH-BZZFRARE
(note 11) (Hiz11) - - - - - (10,680,192) - (10,680,192)
2022 final dvidend proposed ~~ EE-S- £ RERE
(note 11) (H3E11) = = = = - (16,020,288 16,020,288 -
Total transaction with owners ~ BEBAEGZRHEE - - - - - (32,040576)  (5340,09) (37,380,672)
At 31 December 2022 R-E--#4-A
=1+-A 26,700,480  *50,856,881 *660,651  *104,306,101  *(5359,167) *157,066,605  *16,020,288 350,251,839
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GERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
—E-=F —_=E_—
Notes HK$ HK$
Ff 5 BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFEBZHERA
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/Profit before tax BB AT (E518) & 7 (26,567,262) 1,306,185
Adjustments for: PE
Finance costs B & B AR 6 520,757 467,848
Bank interest income HRITH B WA (1,958,029) (1,449,418)
Depreciation of property, plant and & — ¥ - WiE L &RE
equipment (excluding right-of- (BrEREEEN)
use assets) 8,832,577 9,725,950
Depreciation of right-of-use assets e FHEEE 4,090,032 3,803,744
Fair value loss on financial BEAFEBEFABEERZ
liabilities at fair value through TMEEAFEESE
profit or loss, net R 9,772,199 4,240,771
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of items of THEYE BMEMEEZ
property, plant and equipment, (M=) B8 F8E
net (142,180) 15,535
(5,451,906) 18,110,615
Net change in financial assets/ BRAFEEFAEREZ SR
liabilities at fair value through BE/BBZFHE
profit or loss (4,820,747) 20,368,314
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERT A - IR e N E A FE IR
B2Z@L /() 31,900,692 (1,222,062)
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments,  JEWRRITE » (3 hn) /w4
deposits and other receivables (987,763) 5,860,389
Decrease in trade receivables FE W BR TE 7 21,773,330 48,656,255
Decrease in trade payables FEBRIB 2R (5,066,992) (27,652,179)
Decrease in accrued liabilities and EitaEREMEMNRIEZ
other payables Ve (2,120,802) (9,452,366)
Cash generated from operations REXEEFEE RS 35,225,812 54,668,966
Interest received B W 8 1,958,029 1,449,418
Interest paid EAIFE (498,714) (452,027)
Interest element on lease liabilities HEAGEZA B (22,043) (15,821)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREENED (1,551,960) (5,843,449)
Overseas taxes paid BR8N IE (556,865) (277,583)
Net cash flows from operating KEFEFHZHESMA
activities — page 68 R — 68H 34,554,259 49,529,504
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HERERER®

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
—E-= —F——
Notes HKS$ HK$
Bt 5 BT BT
Net cash flows from operating KEEF ZIME WA
activities — page 67 FR—F67H 34,554,259 49,529,504
CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM REZHZREE RHE)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 33
(Increase)/Decrease in time deposits @ =1 A 2 HAFEHAFR 2
with maturity over three months (14n) > (5,572,125) 20,728,702
Purchases of items of property, plant BEZB ¥ % « HE R EE
and equipment (4,556,104) (1,227,362)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BE LRE
property, plant and equipment Fr 1S I8 162,946 5,850
Net cash flows (used in)/generated BEERE RS (Rt)
from investing activities EAFE (9,965,283) 19,507,190
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING REEB 2R E R H
ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid BB 27 (21,360,384)  (37,380,672)
New unsecured revolving term loans/ #EXFEIRAHER
trust receipt loans ErEBUIR E R 27 12,122,640 4,591,980
Repayment of unsecured revolving EEmEMERBAEHER
term loans/trust receipt loans EliEE = 27 (9,714,620) (18,792,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEARE 27 (282,283) (255,967)
Net cash flows used in financing MEEH 2R R FERE
activities (19,234,647) (51,836,659)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH R&RHEESEEER 2
EQUIVALENTS B 5,354,329 17,200,035
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzReRREEMEEE
beginning of year 45,318,524 28,407,654
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREE) 2 - F5
changes, net (1,106,102) (289,165)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHRZRERBASLEEER
AT END OF YEAR 19 49,566,751 45,318,524
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e BB RME

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

K & P International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its registered
office is located at Units 2304-06, 23rd Floor, Riley House, 88
Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were manufacture and
sale of precision parts and components (comprising keypads,
synthetic rubber and plastic components and parts).

There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
land and buildings and financial assets/liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss, which have been measured
at revalued amount and fair value respectively. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2022 consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the
Group and effective from the current year as set out in note
2.2 to the consolidated financial statements. A summary of
the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

2.1

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023
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hEMBEHRERMTE @
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 REEE (&)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using consistent
accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the parent
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or others as
appropriate from the date when control is lost.
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EMEEEAER  HEEXER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES
The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments require companies to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Management has reviewed the disclosure
of accounting policy information and considered it is
consistent with the amendments.

The amendments have no effect on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the consolidated

financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on recognition, give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

T_=F+-A=+—HILEE

BHE-ZT

Year ended 31 December 2023

2.2

2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12: International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules

The amendments provide entities with temporary relief from
accounting for deferred taxes arising from the Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development’s Pillar Two
model rules. The amendments also introduce targeted
disclosure requirements to help investors understand an
entity’s exposure to income taxes arising from the rules.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which
the Group has not early adopted.

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current '
Non-current Liabilities with

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Covenants'
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance
and HKFRS 7 Arrangements '

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback'

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 2

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture 3

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
3 The effective date to be determined

The directors are in the process of assessing the possible
impact on the future adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs,

but are not yet in a position to reasonably estimate their
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

2.2

2.3
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is
presented within these notes, an investment in subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying amount of
the investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on an
individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable amount.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023
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hEMBEHRERMTE @
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXEBEBE )
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued) BEAL(#E)
(b)  (continued) (b)y (#&)
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEETEBEEBRE=H
party. ZEERE-
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy, —EEBRE=FEEZ
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. EELE MBS —EEBR
ZE=ZFEBEENT -
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v) BFHERBRASEENEAR
the benefit of employees of either the Group or SEFHEcERARES
an entity related to the Group. & FI 0 5% 2 Bl B 12 48 K 51
g -
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) BEEREXQ@IEMMALT
person identified in (a). 2 ] 5k HE R 2 ) o
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) F(a)()IE Fratt A £ 7] ¥ 5%
influence over the entity or is a member of the ERAERZE NN ZEZ
key management personnel of the entity (or of a BB (HzEg28R7)
parent of the entity). ZEEEREIKE °
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (viii) ZEESZEEMBEEE
it is a part, provides key management personnel ZERKE AR RASE
services to the Group or to the parent of the SAEE S ARRMEE
Group. ZEBRABRY -
Close members of the family of a person are those family ZALTZEH AT TAH N T8
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced TRGBHEBZATHRZATZE
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include: ZEZEREKBIW B :
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (@) RALTZFZEEBHRERE
E3
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; by ZALTZEBIREZLHEZT
and Zi Rk
() dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or (@ BATHZATZERBRRER
domestic partner. HIZRE -
In the definition of a related party, an associate includes TERAEATHES - Hu &N EBIEZ
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes ﬁ‘ﬁ%WE’D\T MeastEeEze
subsidiaries of the joint venture. EhEMRBAR -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation.

Land and buildings are stated at revalued amount, being
the fair value at the date of valuation less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Valuations
are performed frequently to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount. Changes in the values of property, plant
and equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset
revaluation reserve. Decrease in valuation are first offset
against increase on earlier valuations in respect of the same
asset and are thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to
the extent of the deficit previously charged and thereafter to
revaluation reserve.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Land and buildings 2% 10 2.7%
Land lease premium 2.7%
Office premises 33.33%
Leasehold improvements 2.5% to 30%
Plant and machinery 10% to 25%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10% to 30%
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
Moulds 20% to 33.33%

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023
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hEMBEHRERMTE @
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHERME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
On disposal of a revaluated asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in
reserves.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, except for
leasehold land and buildings, which comprises

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of
the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group will exercise a purchase option — in which
case depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of
the underlying asset) as follows:

Office Premises 3 years
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHERME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

Right-of-use asset related to leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of the leasehold
interest are carried at revalued amount, details of which is set
out under property, plant and equipment paragraph above.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount
rate when there is a change in the residual value guarantee,
the in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other
than floating interest rate). In case of a change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in floating interest
rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using a revised
discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

(b)  the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T=

=F+-A=t—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate
over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis, except for financial
assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL") which are accounted for on the settlement date
basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control
of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables are
initially measured at their transaction price.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHERME(2)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) EWMIT A (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

Classification and measurement (continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“Mandatory
FVOCI”); (iii) equity investment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”);
or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which case
all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of
the first annual reporting period following the change in the
business model.

1)  Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
bank balances and cash, trade receivables and deposits
and other receivables.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXEBEBE S
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ¢RI AE)
Financial assets (continued) EHEE &)
Classification and measurement (continued) DHEREE ()
2)  Financial assets at FVPL 2) ’FVPLZ &G EE
These investments include financial assets that are ZEREBEI IREHK AR
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including FVOCIETEM S MEE - B15F
financial assets held for trading, financial assets EEE RN E R ERFIEE R
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial FVPLETEZ S RIEE - UREH
assets resulting from a contingent consideration WIS WS ERIE3RMES S
arrangement in a business combination to which ZEARBLFEENSRE
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise E - UARBAERAFEGTAEBZ
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at WERMEE - ©MEATEED
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised B - A EF R W R EE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHERME(2)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) ¢RI AE)
Impairment of financial assets and other items eHMEERAME L BE

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL"”) on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost. Except for the specific treatments as detailed
below, at each reporting date, the Group measures a loss
allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the
lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for
that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

i) past due information

ii)  nature of instrument

iii) nature of collateral

iv) industry of debtors

v)  geographical location of debtors
vi) external credit risk ratings
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss
allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the financial instrument, except in the case of
Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value
reserve (recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial
instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHERME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

° the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

° actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:
(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, other receivables are determined to have low
credit risk.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHERME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into
account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
financial liabilities at FVPL and lease liabilities. All financial
liabilities, except for financial liabilities at FVPL, are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for
trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are contingent
consideration of an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at fair value, with
any resultant gain and loss (excluding interest expenses)
recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion of fair
value changes of financial liabilities designated at FVPL that
are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities which
is presented in other comprehensive income unless such
treatment would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. The amounts presented in other comprehensive
income shall not be subsequently transferred to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is transferred
directly to accumulated profits or losses. Interest expenses are
presented separately from fair value gain or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-—T=

=F+-A=t—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in
the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking on initial recognition; or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or
not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business less
any estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period of the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been generally within three months of maturity
at acquisition, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For classification in the consolidated statements of financial
position, bank balances and cash represent assets similar in
nature to cash and which are not restricted as to use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets may be impaired or
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately, except where the
relevant asset is carried at revalued amount in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease in
accordance with the accounting policy relevant to that asset.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised
as income in profit or loss immediately, except where the
relevant asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase in accordance to the accounting policy relevant to
the asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHERME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are
charged against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the Group operates
and generated taxable income.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

3 in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

3 where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHHREME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods

The nature of the goods provided by the Group comprises
sales of precision parts and components.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
promised in a contract with a customer and identifies as
a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the
customer either:

(a) a good (or a bundle of goods) that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods that are substantially the
same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the
customer.

A good that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of
the following criteria are met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the good either on its
own or together with other resources that are readily
available to the customer (i.e. the good is capable of
being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good to the
customer is separately identifiable from other promises
in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good is
distinct within the context of the contract).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHERME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good (i.e.
an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as)
the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

(b) the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of precision parts and components are recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, the contract is presented as a contract asset, excluding
any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely, if a
customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers a good to the customer, the contract is
presented as a contract liability when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group’s right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

For sales of precision parts and components, it is common for
the Group to receive from the customer the whole or some
of the contractual payments when the goods are delivered
(i.e. the timing of revenue recognition for such transactions).
The Group recognises a contract liability until it is recognised
as revenue. During that period, any significant financing
components, if applicable, will be included in the contract
liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the interest
expense is eligible for capitalisation.

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHERME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits in the consolidated
statement of change in equity, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in Hong Kong for all of its eligible employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Foreign currencies

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
by entities in the Group at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date of the transactions first
qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the end
of the reporting period. All differences are taken to the
consolidated income statement. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into Hong
Kong dollars, the presentation currency. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period and their income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at the average exchange rates.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

2.4 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETHERME(2)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rates for the
year.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
of revision and future periods, in case the revision also affects
future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Inventories

The Group does not have a general provisioning policy
on inventories based on ageing given that the inventories
are not subject to frequent wear and tear or frequent
technological changes. However, as a significant portion of
the working capital is devoted to inventories, operational
procedures have been in place to monitor this risk. The
Group reviews the inventory ageing listing on a periodical
basis for those aged inventories. This involves comparison
of the carrying value of the aged inventory items with the
respective net realisable value. The purpose is to ascertain
whether allowance is required to be made in the consolidated
financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items.
In addition, physical counts on all inventories are carried
out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether
any allowance needs to be made in respect of obsolete and
defective inventories identified.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investment in subsidiaries has
suffered any impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 and
follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 in determining whether
amounts due from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting policies.
The assessment requires an estimation of future cash flows,
including expected dividends, from the assets and the
selection of appropriate discount rates. Future changes in
financial performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause the
adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment/
right-of-use assets, other than stated at revalued
amounts

Determining an appropriate amount of an impairment
requires an estimation of recoverable amounts of the
relevant property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets or the respective cash generating units (“CGU") to
which the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets belong, which is the higher of value in use and fair
value less cost of disposal. If there is any indication that
an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount shall be
estimated for individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group
shall determine the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the asset belongs. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the relevant assets or the CGU and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. The discount
rate represents rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
or the CGU for which the future cash flow estimates have
not been adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected or there is a downward revision of future
estimated cash flows due to unfavourable changes in facts
and circumstances, an additional impairment loss may arise.
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, no impairment losses have
been recognised for property, plant and equipment. The
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment other
than those stated at revalued amounts were HK$52,526,519
(2022: HK$56,346,417).

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of land and buildings

The Group’s land and buildings included in property, plant
and equipment are stated at their revalued amounts in
the consolidated statement of financial position, which
are assessed annually by management with reference to
valuations performed by independent professionally qualified
valuer. In determining the revalued amounts, the valuer has
based on the method of valuations which involve certain
estimates. In relying on the valuation report, the directors
of the Company have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the method of valuations is reflective of the
current market conditions. The carrying amounts of the land
and buildings at 31 December 2023 were HK$139,919,000
(2022: HK$144,972,000).

Valuation of financial assets/liabilities at FVPL

The Group’s financial assets/liabilities at FVPL have been
valued based on market-observable data to the extent it
is available. The valuation requires the Group to exercise
judgement to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs associated with the financial
assets/liabilities at FVPL. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
has net financial liabilities at FVPL of HK$8,512,223 (2022:
HK$3,560,771). Details of the techniques and inputs used
in the valuation are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade and other receivables by using various inputs and
assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss
rate. The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty
which is based on the Group’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade and other receivables.
Details of the key assumption and inputs used in estimating
ECL are set out in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on its products and has two reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) the precision parts and components segment comprises
the manufacture and sale of precision parts and
components comprising keypads, synthetic rubber and
plastic components and parts; and

(b) the corporate and others segment comprises the
Group’s long term investments, together with corporate
income and expense items.

Management, the chief operating decision makers, monitors
the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment results, which is a
measure of adjusted (loss)/profit before tax from continuing
operations. The adjusted (loss)/profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax except
that bank interest income and finance costs are excluded
from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the cost of sales and are eliminated on
consolidation.

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

BER#)

BE_E_=F+"A=1t—-RALHFE

Precision
parts and Corporate
components and others Total
BETHH BRREAM @t
HK$ HK$ HK$
Segment revenue: 2EWA
Sales to external customers IR PHE 185,786,572 - 185,786,572
Reportable segment revenue AEREWARBA
and revenue 185,786,572 - 185,786,572
Segment results PEEE: (24,241,878) (3,762,656) (28,004,534)
Reconciliation: HE
Bank interest income RATH BUA 1,958,029
Finance costs BE AR (520,757)
Loss before tax BRERIER (26,567,262)
Other segment information: HitpBEH
Other income and gains Hitn A &M 2,989,901 78,380 3,068,281
Depreciation of property, plant and NE-WE BERR
equipment (excluding right-of-use (REEEEE)
assets) (7,756,313) (1,076,264) (8,832,577)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TE-FRREEE (562,911) (3,527,121) (4,090,032)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE HERREZ
plant and equipment, net Yoz - F8 142,180 - 142,180
Surplus/(Deficit) on revaluation of THREFE-ZARS
land and buildings credited to other (&) st AE b2 EWA
comprehensive income 2,852,273 (381,417) 2,470,856
Lease payments under short-term leases FEHIAERAZE 7 HEFHE
on office premises - (203,544) (203,544)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net BRaE/ (BE) - 38 1,048,424 (85,708) 962,716
Capital expenditure BREI% (4,538,510) (17,594) (4,556,104)
Fair value loss on financial (liabilities) ~ RAFEBEFABZRZ
assets at fair value through profitor ~ & & (&) /AERATEE
loss, net B FE (9,772,199) - (9,772,199)
Realised loss on financial (liabilities)) 1R AF(BEF ABRELZ
assets at fair value through profitor &8 (&%) /BEEEH
loss, net BB ¥R (6,931,539) - (6,931,539)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. R&oBER (&)

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

Precision
parts and Corporate
components and others Total
RRE MG BRREM Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Segment revenue: 2EWA
Sales to external customers HINEPHE 272,102,667 = 272,102,667
Reportable segment revenue AEREWARBA
and revenue 272,102,667 - 272,102,667
Segment results DHEES 3,346,702 (3,022,087) 324,615
Reconciliation: B
Bank interest income HRATH BUA 1,449,418
Finance costs BERK AR (467,848)
Profit before tax BR %% A& 7l 1,306,185
Other segment information: HitpBEH
Other income and gains H A & M 8,660,207 151,082 8,811,289
Depreciation of property, plant and NE-WE BERR
equipment (excluding right-of-use (EEEEE)
assets) (8,757,593) (968,357) (9,725,950)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets WE—FRAREE (590,353) (3,213,391) (3,803,744)
Loss on disposal of items of property, H&EME  BMERZEZ
plant and equipment, net BB 38 (15,535) - (15,535)
Surplus on revaluation of land THREFERZBHBITA
and buildings credited to other Hth2EKA
comprehensive income 6,122,915 4,203,391 10,326,306
Lease payments under short-term leases FEHIFAERAZE 7 HEFHE
on office premises (42,235) (162,110) (204,345)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net Bila (B8) 58 4,388,326 (256,244) 4,132,082
Capital expenditure BARX (1,218,802) (8,560) (1,227,362)
Fair value loss on financial (liabilitiesy AT EBEAEBEERZ
assets at fair value through profitor ~ & & (&) /AERATEE
loss, net B8 58 (4,240,771) = (4,240,771)
Realised loss on financial (liabilities)) R AF(EBEF ABRELZ
assets at fair value through profitor £ &(8&) /BEEEH
loss, net BB F8 (16,726,933) - (16,726,933)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. KR&oBER (&)

Information about major customers FEEZEFEH
Revenue from external customers contributing 10% or REBEZE G B ZRAGREE
over of the total revenue from Group’s precision parts and I A10%ZIA EEINERIAT ¢

components segment are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= —_=__
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Customer A ZEA 43,214,506 65,134,168
Customer B = FB 28,917,208 38,152,874

72,131,714 103,287,042

Geographical information i & & R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) HINEFUA
2023 2022
—=E_—= =
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong BB 5,942,109 7,516,369
Mainland China B K B 14,205,598 27,083,355
Japan and other Asian countries B 28 K HoAth 55 M B R 102,184,806 139,649,065
North America b M 29,558,019 45,920,122
South America 5 =M 2,360,395 2,253,321
Europe HOA 24,352,185 40,419,191
Other countries H A Bl 7,183,460 9,261,244
Total revenue “ Uy A 185,786,572 272,102,667
The revenue information above is based on the PA_EW A B RHEE B R i [& £
geographical location of the customers. 5 e
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. R&oBER (&)

Geographical information (continued) wEER (Z)
(b) Non-current assets (b) FETEEE
2023 2022
—Z == —E-=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong BB 64,957,644 69,713,550
Mainland China e N7 127,084,586 130,922,582
Other countries Ho b B = 403,289 682,285

192,445,519 201,318,417

The non-current assets information above is based on A ESERENEEERHREEMT
the geographical location of assets and excludes the EEln ENBEEEATFEER
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss and FSTABRER S REE MEER
deferred tax assets. BEE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

WA~ B AR K&

WABARFERNHEEMNWERFE
HBEERERESTM -

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, during the
year.

AEEWA - B A KWz o4

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is

as follows: R
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$ HK$
BT T
Revenue from contracts with &80 %S A
customers within the scope of FEISEERA
HKFRS 15: KEEFEHZWA
Sale of goods BEmiHE 185,786,572 272,102,667
Other income and gains: Hig A R :
Bank interest income calculated using RITHBWA - REBEF =X
the effective interest method FEETE 1,958,029 1,449,418
Tooling charge income AU A 68,728 135,485
Sale of scrap RER}SH & 136,178 1,766,709
Sale of samples EmiHe 1,720,203 1,357,507
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME BMERZXHEZ
plant and equipment, net Was - JF5E 142,180 -
Incentive received* B U 22 B 3+ 1,554 291,596
Government subsidy* BT #e B = 872,809
Exchange gain, net PEH Wz - F5E 962,716 4,132,082
Over-provision for sales commission BREREEERES = 195,622
Others Hib 36,722 59,479
5,026,310 10,260,707
Total revenue, other income BB~ Htt AR 2
and gains 190,812,882 282,363,374

REEHERZBACEBERFENZ
AHBIEAR3134372B (=T ==
£F :3,492,519% 1) °

The amount of revenue recognised for the year that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
is HK$3,134,372 (2022: HK$3,492,519).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. s HM AR WS &)

(continued)

@ During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received HE_ZTZ_=F+-A=+—H
an allowance named “{REFHBE T#AEL" of RMB1,400, LR E - AEE e E AR K AE
approximately HK$1,554 from Ministry of Human Resources AN BRI SRS EE [
and Social Security as the Group employed qualified staff. In A B T AL &9 R 581,400
2022, the amount represented an allowance of “Granting AR (41,5547 7T) » LWEBIAK
Support in Respect of the Unemployment Insurance to SEHEFCERMNEI - E=F
Enterprises for Stabilising Employment” of RMB253,140, ——F HeRERKI —%5H
approximately HK$291,596 from Social Security Bureau. REAERBIRBOERBEMEMLIN

2 BA 253,140 A R ¥ (#9291,596
HBIT) °

# In 2022, the government subsidies represented a grant received BT _F  BUTHBLEERSES
from the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of the Hong FrAlITE R BT [P mE i &
Kong Special Administration Region under the Employment T HE TR BE 2 AT & e B BOAT
Support Scheme which aims to retain employment under the A #X553,5927%8 7T + B fECOVID-19
COVID-19 environment amounted to HK$553,592 and an one- BERRTAGRBERES -
off training subsidy for workers amounted to RMB272,835 R{EPEARZENMBEANANEIR
(approximately HK$319,217) received from Ministry of Human HEREPKRD —E—REEI
Resources and Social Security to support enterprises in i RE51272,835 A R # (49319,217
organising employees to work instead of training under the BIL)  ANERBACEEAME TR
COVID-19 environment. COVID-193R3F T A THER BT

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BERAE

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEXANDTAT :

2023 2022
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RAFREREZHBITER KL
wholly repayable within five years & H A 498,714 452,027
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 23) HEAGHN L (M$23) 22,043 15,821
520,757 467,848

SEERERERAT
—E-=55H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BREBA(EE) HBF
The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after RNEEKRF AT (B18) 87 &Mk,
charging/(crediting): (5T A) :
2023 2022
—E-= —_=__
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Staff costs (including directors’ ETRX (BIEEEME
remuneration — note 8)*: —Fff5E8) # :
Wages and salaries ITENEHS 67,318,374 77,355,617
Contributions to retirement benefit RARAE AT B4 3K
schemes 9,903,656 11,575,245

77,222,030 88,930,862

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 160,137,871 216,781,642
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENEN & 880,000 880,000
Depreciation of property, WE W% BERKE
plant and equipment (excluding (BRERAEEE)"
right-of-use assets)* 8,832,577 9,725,950
Depreciation of right-of-use assets* e —EREEE 4,090,032 3,803,744
Foreign exchange gain, net bE 5 W - AR (962,716) (4,132,082)
Lease payments under short-term leases %8 EifH B A = < T & ZUE
on office premises 203,544 204,345
Sales commission HEME 1,868,432 2,795,430
# The staff cost amounting to HK$55,798,960 (2022: & KNEE 2z 8 T X F55,798,960/%
HK$70,006,300), depreciation amounting to HK$8,769,988(2022: gt (ZZF = —4 : 70,006,300/ 7T) -
HK$9,652,902) for the year are included in “Cost of sales” in the T E 588,769,988 L (— T — —4F ¢
consolidated income statement. 9,652,902 L) ED BB EELE T

BRZIEERAIA -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF 8.
DIRECTORS

Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

FRESENER

RIZ_ET RPN EBE R FHEBI PR E

Rules and the Companies Ordinance, are as follows: BR2EEHeOT :
(a) Director’'s emoluments (a) EEM=
(i) Independent non-executive directors (i) BUHHTEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive REE AL T BILIESH
directors during the year were as follows: TEZEZ2HME
2023 2022
—ECZ=HF =~
HK$ HK$
BT &I
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph Fnd 333,936 333,936
Mak Kwai Wing BHEE 333,936 333,936
Pong Suet Hing EEW(R_T_=%F
(appointed on 30 April 2023) MA=+HZE) 223,552 -
Kung Fan Cheong LEE(RZZE_=F
(resigned on 30 April 2023) MA=+HET) 111,312 333,936
1,002,736 1,001,808

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2022: Nil).

ANEE AL EEN TIEL

BT E B2 E B (=
T ) -

= — —

SREBERERAT
—E-=55H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T=

=F+-A=t—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2023

8. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(a)

Director’'s emoluments (continued)

8. FRHEE®MNENR @)

(a) EEME (&)

(ii) Executive directors (i) BITEE
Contributions
to retirement
Discretionary benefit Other Total
Fees Salaries bonus schemes allowances remuneration
BARER
we ¢ BiEta RIS Eth2E aEH
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
BT B BT BT B BT
2023 ZEC=F
Executive directors: HITEE:
Lai Pei Wor FEEA - 2,880,865 - - 53,352 2,934,217
Chan Yau Wah BRE - 836,940 - - 57,412 894,352
- 3,717,805 - - 110,764 3,828,569
2022 2
Executive directors; HAES:
Lai Pei Wor BIEA - 2,880,865 1,278,480 - - 4,159,345
Chan Yau Wah BRrE - 882,180 386,100 - 50,000 1,318,280
- 3,763,045 1,664,580 - 50,000 5,477,625

(b) Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in

(c)

favour of directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of the directors of the Company that were
entered into or subsisted during the year (2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interest in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion
that no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company or a connected entity of the director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year (2022: Nil).

(b) AEZAZHEAZER £

(c)

ERREMRS

PN/NICTI AV N SN I 1 3 VAL
BFHEUNSEASZHEAZER %
ERFEMRZG (==

/) o

EERXE R¥HEHZ
EDN £

KEEE  BERARNAFER
SN E N RERE  EFE
RRBHWER— R BEBARRER
ZEARS  BHERAHARR
RESNEECHETRNEF
BEHEESMBEZEA#EZR (=
TZF | o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included 2
(2022: 2) executive directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration
of the remaining 3 (2022: 3) non-director, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

TNBREHEE
AEERMNESHIEEREMA (=
EF MA)BTES  FRE
PR EXHiEs e f T = (=T ==
F =) BaF HEEEEE LT
B & R R

2023 2022
—E=-= —E=-=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits ~E A% & « 2=8E R
in kind EWH 3,596,970 3,596,970
Discretionary bonus )15 TEAT = 1,410,104
Contributions to retirement benefit RIKAE FFT B 3R
schemes 36,000 36,000
3,632,970 5,043,074

The remuneration of non-director, highest paid employees is
within the following bands:

SEHEEEER L FHFAEER
mF :

Number of individuals

EE A
2023 2022
::E?::E. =

Nil to HK$1,000,000 #221,000,00078 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,0018 7c £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,00078 JT 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 JTL £2,500,00078 7T = 1
3 3

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals and other directors, as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
In addition, during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, no directors waived any of their emoluments.

BE_ZE_ =GR _ZFT_—_F+_A
=t+t—HB1t TEENTFAEE RN
EaHEEREMESE 2 EMEHE
YERR S| E I AN & B ok i BB 12 4%
BISkEEREE - AR BEZT ==
FERZFBZZF+ZA=+—HI "
I 4 5 28 N A B o

SEERERERAT
—E-=55H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

10.

INCOME TAX

The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the
“Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime was signed and gazetted. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
qualifying group entity are taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. The profits of other group
entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Taxes on assessable profits outside Hong Kong have been
provided on the estimated assessable profits for the year, in
respect of the Group’s operations outside Hong Kong, at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

10.

P 18 %

ZE—EFRB UEET) (F75) K0
BR(MEHEZR]) 5| AFIE TR MR
FIE BT RTIE - BREFNESHERRK
#l - AEBEEEFE2,000,000%87T
T IR T KRB 25% R Bl MR ®
2,000,000/ 7T 2 i M A HE T E 16.5%
R TREFEREMAT 2 EE
B RFEEEIRG —FE16.5%
RA 0

BAEINERBEMNHACEAF
EEFERBP NN REAREERE
BIMEENRBARDAER 2 E AN R
Bt e

2023 2022
—s—= —T=-=
HK$ HK$
BT T
Current — Hong Kong: NE—&FE :
Charge for the year RNEESTH 159,997 4,912,240
Over provision in prior years FFEEERE (29,996) (587,539)
Current — outside Hong Kong: RNE—BABHFIN
Charge for the year AEFEESH 170,742 555,813
Under/(Over) provision in prior years FERR,/ (B BEE 29,855 (71,293)
Deferred taxation: IEAERIA -
Origination and reversal of temporary 2B {4 2= B 5 2 4 & %@
difference (800,000) (3,000,000)
Total tax (credit)/expense for the year ARFEEFHE (EK®) FHX (469,402) 1,809,221
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FRBH (#)
A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable EREARARAREXRZHMBEA
to (loss)/profit before tax at the statutory rates for the BIRENEEERINGRTER (BE)
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its A 2 AR E B AR IE (K
subsidiaries are operated to the tax (credit)/expense is as %) /FHAXHEBEGER) FHALX 2B
follows: N
2023 2022
—s=-= —E=-=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss)/Profit before tax BR&L AT (BHR) i F (26,567,262) 1,306,185
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% ¥ FE R E16.5% 2 1B
(2022: 16.5%) (ZE =% :16.5%) (4,383,598) 215,521
Tax effect of two-tiered profits tax rates 7|75 2 i/ 4% &l 7 57 &
regime = (165,000)
Effect of different rates for companies A &4 & R H b 7 5 & A
operating in other jurisdictions TRBMRZZE 85,704 129,820
Income not subject to tax DA 2 WA (405,966) (582,256)
Expenses not deductible for tax S AT H0 R B T8 2 B 2 1,035,521 574,941
Unrecognised temporary differences RER TR EER 1,065,211 2,243,186
Utilisation of previously A AR ATER 2 A EE
unrecognised tax losses = (67,935)
Over provision in prior years A FBRE A (141) (658,832)
Tax losses not recognised RERZTRIEEIE 2,095,916 116,665
Others Hih 37,951 3,111
Tax (credit)/expense for the year AFERAER) FX (469,402) 1,809,221
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HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

11. DIVIDEND 11. BE
2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$ HK$
BT o
Attributable to the current year: RAFEFE G -
Proposed final dividend — HK8 cents  ZFEAHIR S — T L @RS H(L
(2022: HK6 cents) per ordinary share  (ZZ = —4 : 6/81l) 21,360,384 16,020,288
Interim dividend paid — HK2 cents XA HR S — BT EAR2E (L
(2022: HK2 cents) per ordinary share (=T = =4 : 2/&1l) 5,340,096 5,340,096
Special dividend paid — Nil SRR B — &
(2022: HK4 cents per ordinary share) TR F  gREBR
47 - 10,680,192
26,700,480 32,040,576
Attributable to the previous years, REAERIHIUEEE
approved and paid during the year: BTG -
Final dividend — HK6 cents REAAR B — TR E @Bl
(2022: HK8 cents) per ordinary share (=& = =4 : g 1l) 16,020,288 21,360,384
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the REZEZRPKREBFARARRK
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming RBFRG EHE - FAIEE - bR
annual general meeting. This dividend has not been BERMmEMHRTABRAREE -

recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
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BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 12. XRBEBAMGEER

OF THE COMPANY B

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on FREARNREEEEDIRBBERQR%E
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company EAFMEAFEEERAFEAND
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue TIEEHERREBE -

during the year.

The calculations of the basic and diluted loss per share are BRERREFBHETRBA TS
based on:
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E=E-—
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss =]
Loss attributable to owners of the RARER APEER
Company used in the basic and diluted FARFEFRERK
loss per share calculation: SRR 26,097,860 503,036
Shares IR 17
Weighted average number of ordinary  ZAN4EE A B 31T 2 INAE
shares in issue during the year used TRIREE BRErE
in the basic and diluted loss per share &A% E A K #5E E548
calculation 267,004,800 267,004,800
As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares, diluted B ARSI ERR - N
loss per share was the same as basic loss per share in 2023 —=EERZIZBZ_FHNERELREE
and 2022. HEgR#EEIEAER -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE-F-=F+-A=t+-ALEE

Year ended 31 December 2023

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. % - BERRKRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold  Land lease Office Plantand  and office Motor
buildings ~ improvements premium premises  machinery  equipment vehicles Moulds Total
1HHEE G RER
THEET HEXE ER H#0Z  HERKE BOERE RE 1 &t
HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS$
BT B B B B B B B BT
31 December 2023 “E-CE+-A=t-H
At31December 2022and  RZE-—%+-f=1-8
1 January 2023: RZFZ=5-F-R:
Cost or valuation RASGE 144,972,000 56,763,706 15,596,209 1,250,012 59543827  24,655432 4675401 37,622,977 345,079,564
Accumulated depreciation  EiffERFESE
and impairment loss - (29,718,831)  (5,685,045) (574,645)  (42,515,512)  (23,081,515)  (4,562,622) (37,622,977) (143,761,147)
Net carrying amount EAFE 144,972,000 27,044,875 9,911,164 675,367 17,028,315 1573917 12,119 - 201,318,417
Reconciliation of carrying ~ HE=ZF==%
amount - year ended tZA=t+-AL
31 December 2023 ERRAFEIN
At 1 January 2023 R-F-=F-f-H 144,972,000 27,044,875 9,911,164 675,367 17,028,315 1573917 12,119 - 201,318,417
Additions WE - 2615727 - - 1,362,023 208,368 369,986 - 4,556,104
Disposals HE - - - - (18,067) (2,6%9) - - (20,766)
Depreciation e (6,075,854)  (2,276,161) (283,474) (279,438)  (3,629,899) (377,783) - - (12,922,609)
Surplus on revaluation BREBRITA
debited to other Hfr2ERA
comprehensive income 2,470,856 - - - - - - - 2,470,856
Exchange realignment L (1,448,002) (721,065) (200,495) 5,890 (549,955) (36,529) (6,327) - (2,956,483)
At 31 December 2023, net  R=E==%t-F=t-8"
carrying amount REFE 139,919,000 26,663,376 9,427,195 401819 14192417 1365274 476,438 - 192,445,519
At 31 December 2023; R-E-=F+-A=t+-H:
Cost or valuation KA GE 139,919,000 58,174,816 15,296,208 1,260,101 59,157,874 24,668,618 4991550 37,622,977 341,091,144
Accumulated depreciation ~ E:tHER
and impairment loss HEER - (315114400  (5869013)  (858.282) (44965457) (23303344)  (4515112) (37,62.977) (148,645,625)
Net carrying amount REFE 139,919,000 26,663,376 9,427,195 401819 14192417 1365274 476,438 - 192,445,519
Analysis of cost or BAGEEA T
valuation at S
31 December 2023: T-A=t-R:
At cost HA - 58174816 15296208 1,260,101 59,157,874 24,668,618 4,991,550 37,622,977 201,172,144
At valuation {4t 139,919,000 - - - - - - - 139,919,000
139,919,000 58,174,816 15296208 1,260,101 59,157,874 24,668,618 4,991,550 37,622,977 341,091,144

K & P International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2023




e HERNE @
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. YI¥ - BERRZRE#)

Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and leasehold ~ Land lease Office Plant and office Motor
buildings  improvements premium premises  machinery  equipment vehicles Moulds Total
THHE B 2ER
THRET HEXE Ef H#RE  BEREE HOAERR HE BA @i

HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT B BT BT B BT BT b BT

31 December 2022 “E--f£+-f=1-A

At 31 December 2021and  R=F-—%+-f=1-H
A-R

1 January 2022: R-F--%-f-
Cost or valuation RAKME 144,823,000 60,096,804 16,496,208 410,353 63425158 24,980,841 5098242 56,245942 371,576,548
Accumulated depreciation  EiffEREEER

and impairment loss - (28,561,648 (5,677,431 (291,647)  (41,182,110)  (23,206,824)  (4,956,212)  (56,245,942) (160,121,814)
Net carrying amount EAFE 144,823,000 31535156 10818777 118,706 22,243,048 1,774,017 142,030 - 211,454,734

Reconciliation of carrying ~ HE-F--%F
amount - year ended tZAZ+-BL
31 December 2022 EEERFERS

At 1 January 2022 R-E--#-f-H 144,823,000 31535156 10,818,777 118,706 22,243,048 1,774,017 142,030 - 211,454,734
Additions RE - 201,448 - 838,386 679,974 345,940 - - 2,005,748
Disposals HE - - - - (9,684) (11,701) - - (21,389)
Depreciation it (5,712,510)  (2,441,964) (294,324) (275,760 (4,370,653) (414.214) (20,269) - (13,529,694)
Surplus on revaluation EfREHA

debited to other E2ERA

comprehensive income 10,326,306 - - - - - - - 10,326,306
Exchange realignment EiA% (4,464,79)  (2,249,765) (613,289) (5965  (1,514,370) (120,125) (8,982) - (8,977,292)

At 31 December 2022, net R

carrying amount 144,972,000 27,044,875 9,911,164 675367 17,028,315 1,573,917 112,779 - 201318417
At 31 December 2022: RoE-—F+-B=t-H:

Cost or valuation KA GE 144972,000 56,763,706 15,596,209 1,250,012 59543827  24,655432 4675401 37,622,977 345,079,564

Accumulated depreciation  Z3FHER

and impairment loss HEER - (29718831) (5,685,045 (574,645)  (42,515512)  (23,081,515)  (4562,622) (37,622,977) (143,761,147)

Net carrying amount REEE 144,972,000 27,044,875 9,911,164 675367 17,028,315 1,573,917 112,779 - 201318417
Analysis of cost or valuation  Fi A Sk (A E AT

at 31 December 2022: RoE-—F+f=1-R:

At cost KA - 56,763,706 15,596,209 1,250,012 59543827 24,655,432 4,675,401 37,622,977 200,107,564

At valuation &t 144,972,000 - - - - - - - 144,972,000

144972,000 56,763,706 15,596,209 1,250,012 59543827 24655432 4675401 37,622,977 345,079,564

REERZERERAF
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HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥ - BERRZRE#E)

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at the end
of the reporting period by Chung, Chan & Associates,
independent professionally qualified valuer. The land and
buildings in Hong Kong were revalued on the basis of
market value by the comparison approach, based on their
existing state, while the buildings in Mainland China were
revalued using the depreciated replacement cost method.
No changes were made in the valuation technique(s) during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. A surplus
arising from revaluation on the buildings in Mainland China
of HK$3,712,736 (2022: HK$6,122,915) and deficit arising
from revaluation on the land and buildings in Hong Kong of
HK$1,241,880 (2022: surplus of HK$4,203,391) have been
credited to other comprehensive income.

Had the Group’s land and buildings been carried at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, their carrying amounts would have been included
in the consolidated financial statements at approximately
HK$52,845,000 (2022: HK$55,768,000) with the original
currency of HK$14,397,000 and RMB34,952,000 (2022:
HK$15,061,000 and RMB36,023,000).

REEZ L REFRMERAREB
VEXLAERGEMEGETETNE
B - FFLHREFRERAANT
BEERRENMKLER  MHPREX
EMEFARTESERAEER o
BE_Z_=FR_FT_—_F+_A1
=t+t—HLEFER  BRAGBEREL
B4 AT 2 B o (A ait i B K FE Y
EFREEmEENEHAER3,712,736
BT (DT = — % :6,122,915% 70)
FEBLHREFHEMEEMNER
E5181,241,8808 0 (ZE-_—F : &
#:4,203,391%87L) Bt AEMEE U
)\ °

B RAETF R AR
R ERBERBEYE  EEA
BEEFAGREM KRR £
#4952,845,0008 L (=& = =
55,768,000 L) r HREBE A
14,397,000/ JT 34,952,000 A &
W (—ZF = — 4 : 15,061,000 7T &
36,023,000 A R#) o

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FHREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets RIEEEERMGERREEER
by class of underlying assets is as follows: HFEITAT
2023 2022
—E-= . —
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt % BT BT
Leasehold land and buildings EEARBEANEE

held for own use, carried at T RAEF - T FER

valuation, with remaining lease FH&H :

terms of:

— 10 to 25 years —10& 254 (i) 64,821,000 69,590,000
Land lease premium THHEER (i) 9,427,195 9,911,164
Office premises I RINE (iii) 401,819 675,367
Net carrying amount REFEE 74,650,014 80,176,531
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets (continued)

During the year, no additions to right-of-use assets
(2022: HK$838,386, which related to the capitalised
lease payments payable under new tenancy agreement).

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

e MBHRRME

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

13. W% BERRE @)
(a) EHEEE &)

NER - EIIBEAEEE (=
T — — 4 :838,386/B7C ' X%
HERENAEHZEN ZER
tHEENRER) -

FERERERZNHENRAYE
EofunT :

2023 2022
—E=-= —E_—
Notes HK$ HK$
Ff 5 BT BT
Depreciation charge of right- %188 & & 18 5l ¥ % 7
of-use assets by class of BEEMTEER :
underlying asset:
Leasehold land and buildings HE L MEF 3,527,120 3,213,391
Land lease premium T EER 283,474 294,324
Office premises FER/NE 279,438 275,760
Motor vehicles SE (iv) - 20,269
4,090,032 3,803,744

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set
out in note 23 of the consolidated financial statements.

(i)

Leasehold land and buildings held for
own use

The Group holds a commercial building for its
daily operations. The Group is the registered
owner of the property interest, including the
whole or part of undivided share in the underlying
land. Payments were made upfront to acquire this
property interest from previous registered owners
and there are no ongoing payments to be made
under the terms of the land lease, other than
payments based on rateable values set by the
relevant government authorities. These payments
vary from time to time and are payable to the
relevant government authorities.

HEaE 2RO ITFIEERER
B SRR E23 -

() BERHEELHEEF

ARERA—EEXET
EEREEZA - AEHE
R ERED (BREE2HE
D NEED & B MES L
) BERRER A o FZAl
BRENBABBMEER
ZHRECEXN  BRER
BT #iEEE MG ENE
B SRIR SN - A A AR B
HEARTEREND
TH - AEBRFHERE
MEEENKASEE
iy il i A 2 o

REERZERERDA
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

13. W% BERR®E )
(a) EHEEE &)
(i) tHHEEEH

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(@) Right-of-use assets (continued)

(ii) Land lease premium

The land lease premium represents the interests
in leasehold lands held which are situated in
Mainland China and are held under medium term
leases of 50 years with the remaining lease terms
of 15 to 25 years (2022: 16 to 26 years).

T EEREMRF
B K B 7 & A9 1 A S
mMEEHAR 5 mMFE
HEERATEE-_TH
F(ZBZZF: +1=&

ZHRE) -

(iii) Office premises Giii) BRE
The Group has obtained the right to use a rEEFEBRAEESRER
property as its office premises through a tenancy —EMEERIEZR
agreement. The lease term is 3 years. MmAEMSHA=F -
Restrictions or covenants PR & 2 49
Most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless ABHHEERZE — B
approval is obtained from the lessor, the right-of- R - BRIEEF A AL
use asset can only be used by the Group and the B BAERATREELE
Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the RAAUBAAREERFER WL
underlying assets. IEASEEHERERIENA
For lease of property, the Group is required to MMAEMEHREMS -
keep the property in a good state of repair and REBEZHAEMER
return the property in its original condition at the BRERFOGKEMRR I
end of the lease. REEEREBHFAE
Residual value guarantees BRIEJER
The Group does not provide residual value AEBWESMAENE
guarantees for the lease contract of office THERHEEREER -
premises.

(iv) Motor vehicle (iv) TE

The Group leases a motor vehicle under leases,
which was pledged, and expired in 2022.

AREBHE—WIED
B MEEHER =-Z
——FHme
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14. SUBSIDIARIES

e HERNE @
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

14. B2 F

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWNBARFBENAT
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and interest attributable
Company name operations Issued and paid-up share to the Company Principal activities
Ri/ERE ARAMERE
ARER EXnE BRTRARRS BRADM TEXK
2023 2022 2023 2022
ot Sl “E--F ot St “E-F
Cokeen Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of management
REERERAA B 10,000% 7 10,0007 and administrative
Services
RUERRTBRS
E-Dotcom Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
Bk W T RERR
HTP Industrial Limited Hong Kong ~ HK$2,000,000  HK$2,000,000 100 100 Sale of precision parts and
i (F%) ARAT % 2,000,00087% 2,000,000 7 components
HERTTRN
Hi-Tech (China) Investment Limited HongKong  HK$2,000,000  HK$2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
bR (hE)RERRAT A 2,000000%7% 2,000,007 REBR
Hi-Tech Investment Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 U5$50,000 100 100 Investment holding
EERARES 50,000% 70 50,000% 7T RAERK
Hi-Tech Property Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 Usst 100 100 Property holding
Mainland China 1£5 S EST]
AB4ARER/
B
Hi-Tech Precision Industrial Limited Hong Kong ~ HK$1,500,000  HK§1,500,000 100 100 Sale of precision parts and
HERAIZERAH & 1500,0008%  1,500,000%7 components
HERTENN
Hunpex Limited HongKong ~ HK$4,650,000  HK$4,650,000 100 100 Investment holding
BiEARAR B 46500008% 46500007 REZR
K & P Group (Holdings) Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~~ US$1,238,545 US$ 1,238,545 100 100 Investment holding
HongKong 1,238 545%7% 1238 545X 7 REBR
KEEmRHE/
Bk
K. S. (China) Electronics Manufactory Hong Kong HK$2 HKS2 100 100 Investment holding
Limited B 287 BT REZR
2 (B EFHARDA
Mars Field Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 Us§1 100 100 Investment holding
BHEEAT Hong Kong 1%7 E3 RARR
KEgERES/
B

REERZERERDA
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

14. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14. BT (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and interest attributable
Company name operations Issued and paid-up share to the Company Principal activities
RY/2ERR EREMERA
AR EXE BRARAE RS BEAAM IZER
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-cE “E-CF —E-cE “E-CE
Sun Ngai Plastic Products Factory Limited Hong Kong  HK$10,890,000  HKS$10,890,000 100 100 Inactive
HEEBHRFER A &% 10,890,000%7% 10,890,000 ek
Technology Trends International Limited ~ British Virgin Islands/ US850,000 US$50,000 100 100 Sale of precision parts and
Singapore 50,000% 7t 50,0005 components
%E%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%/ ﬁﬁ*{wvﬂ ﬁ'
%
hEMILEFRRAF" Mainland China ~ US$10,000,000  US$10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
BEAE  10,000,000%7  10,000,000% 7T of precision parts and
components
HEREERTEHN
IIES TS 21N Mainland China ~ US$3,000,000  US$3,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
mEAE 3,000,007 3,000,000%7 of precision parts and
components
HERHERTTIMN
FRERRRY) ARAT Mainland China ~ HK$22,125,390  HK$22,125,390 100 100 Inactive
HEAE (note i) (note i) i
DAB30ET 221253905
(W) (B 35)
= These entities are Mainland China limited liability companies. * hRAATEAEEREELT
Note: P =
0) On 22 September 2016, the registered share capital increased from (i) R-_E—XREhLA-t+=-H =ZMHE

HK$8,000,000 to HK$23,000,000. The remaining registered share
capital of HK$874,610 is committed by the Group to inject on or

before 21 September 2026.

Except for K & P Group (Holdings) Limited, all of the above
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. None of the Ap
subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

7K #38,000,0007%8 71 1% 23,000,000
B AEEEAZR_ZT_~FNLA
—t+—B= A EARBERER
874,610/ T °

KK & P Group (Holdings) Limited
C LT AMB AR B AR RIME
BERE - RAEE HBEMNBARE
BT BB H

EERB - LRMIIEZARRINE
AAEEFEANFEREIBRAS
BEEFEXIZNND EFAIRR
RUAEMMHBRBNFAER - &5
BHARBRITE -

' K & P International Holdings Limited
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT FAIR 15. RATFEEFAERR2SH
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS gE /(a8
2023 2022
—_E_= —=E=-—
HK$ HK$
BT o
Non-current assets EREBEE
Club membership T HTE A 680,000 680,000
Forward currency contracts RHEEEH - 579,976
680,000 1,259,976
Current liability REEE
Forward currency contracts RHBEREEH (8,045,759) (4,820,747)
Non-current liability RBEE
Forward currency contracts RHEEER (1,146,464) -
Club membership ik
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the club membership was RZE_=FR-_ZFB-__F+_H
issued by a private entity. It is measured at fair value at the =t—H FLTREELEEEE
end of each reporting period. The fair value of the club Hramess NEBERSHARTE
membership is determined with reference to the publicly HAFEE - LEMEE2ATER
available price information. D2ERNRIIREER -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT FAIR 15. BRAFEEFAERR2SH

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Forward currency contracts, at fair values, held for trading
The Group entered into twenty-two (2022: twenty) forward
currency contracts at a total of US$55,465,721 (2022:
US$52,218,292) for the exchange of United States Dollars
("US$"”) with RMB with the forward rates ranged from
RMB6.571 to RMB6.997 (2022: RMB6.666 to RMB6.869) per
US$1. The maturity dates of these forward currency contracts
are during the period from 16 January 2024 to 10 October
2025 (2022: 17 April 2023 to 15 November 2024).

During the year, the Group has realised loss of HK$6,931,539
(2022: HK$16,726,933) arising from nine contracts of a
total of US$23,988,640 on the maturity dates (2022: fifteen
forward currency contracts of a total of US$35,259,480
on the maturity dates and nine contracts of a total of
US$23,988,640 before the maturity dates), for the exchange
of US$ with RMB which depreciated (2022: depreciated).
In 2022, the original maturity dates for the nine contracts
terminated before maturity date were during the period from
13 January 2023 to 15 June 2023.

The change in the fair value of these currency derivatives
amounting to a loss of HK$9,772,199 (2022: HK$4,240,771)
was recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

BE (BR8)#)
BATBEISEEREEAN

REBRI -+ (ZE==

—tHExT(ER) AARKER
{855,465, 721F L (Z & = =

52,218,292 T) MR EB AL -
RHERBERTI1ETH657TTAR
BE6 997 AR (ZE =4 :6.666
AR ZE6869ARY) - ZFRHAE
AWz REER T —ME—
Bt+tXNBE-_Z-_A&+A+H(=
T - HT=FWMA++tH

=

E-FT-_NFEF+—A+REA) -

AKERN  ANEBHLDBLAE
23,988,640k AR (ZE==F : ¥
AREIHBA S+ R H4A(ESS,259,480
X RERIBAARNADAE
23,988,640k L) METLH AR
REEEAREARBEETLRME
(ZEZZ=F:RE) WHBE2EH
E5186,931,5398 L (=2 = =
16,726,933 L) c E — T = =
R ARESBEAMTENNDENER
Bl HREEAR_T=_=F—A
+=HE-_ZE-_=%xA1+HH-

REEBITETENAFEEY
BE 859,772,199 T (— T - —
F 1 4,240,77MBL) WEBREEHE
—E =+ A=t+—HIEZFE
KA
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

16. INVENTORIES 16. &
2023 2022
—s=-= —E——
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials R 20,123,050 26,241,376
Work in progress bk T 10,297,819 10,745,363
Finished goods BIRK 18,674,010 46,167,387
49,094,879 83,154,126
Less: provision for slow-moving B BT ERE
inventories (1,183,521) (1,220,950)
47,911,358 81,933,176
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no RZEBE_=FN_E__F+=A4
inventories carried at fair value less cost to sell. =t+—H UEAANGFERAFEE

B 8 B B AR AR o

17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 17. ERRE - Be R EMERR
RECEIVABLES i |
2023 2022
—=E—= —EF -
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments SRR/ 1,108,530 951,662
Toolings and mould deposits RAZRS = 55,637
Deposits and other receivables Re & H th fE IR 3,172,738 2,329,943
4,281,268 3,337,242

REERZERERAF
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. FEWERIE
2023 2022
—E—-= — ==
Note HK$ HK$
M E BT BT
Trade receivables FE W BR 18 35,925,870 57,843,839
Less: loss allowance B B R 32(b) (30,500) (30,500)

35,895,370 57,813,339

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and B 77 & B A e Uk BR 18 K E 4th B Uk SR
loss allowance for trade and other receivables is included in HAEEANEERRREERECE
note 32(b) to the consolidated financial statements. HBsEFEeMBmRMTE32(0)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of PR 5 B R FE W BRI #2 35 25 B HA JOR
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of REEBER ZREDTAT :

loss allowance, is as follows:

2023 2022

ZEZE —_=__
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 90 days TRA 33,580,482 52,308,836
91 to 180 days n+—Z—8NA+X 2,097,910 4,259,119
Over 180 days =W o N 216,978 1,245,384

35,895,370 57,813,339

19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19. RITEBRRES
2023 2022
—_=E-= —_=__
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Time deposits with original maturity HiE=1E AR E S H
over three months & 8317 3k 50,788,746 45,216,621
As stated in the consolidated EVREGEERERER
statement of cash flows 49,566,751 45,318,524

100,355,497 90,535,145

K & P International Holdings Limited
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19.

20.

e MBHRRME

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, included in the balance
of the Group are bank balances and cash deposited in
Mainland China and denominated in RMB of HK$10,031,912
(2022: HK$4,383,627). RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies. However, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. Time deposits as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 represented bank deposits placed in banks in
Hong Kong. The interest rate ranged from 2.28% to 5.21%
per annum in 2023 (2022: 2.10% to 3.20%).

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

19.

20.

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

RITERRBES (#)

REBEER - AEBEFRBEAREZ 4
MREITEUARBFEZRITEBRRIR
£ /10,031,9128 L (ZE =4 :
4,383,627870) - ARBETEEERE
BMEMER  ERER B ARREINEE
AR ERET  HERINTNERE
HE AEEREFBERELES
INETE Z BITHEARE KR BINE -

RTHEETEREEEMmMMOPTEE
LM ET R_TE_=ZF k=
E-__FE+ - A=+—HBNEHE
REFEREBRTNRITER M
REZEZ=FHEHFHNEEHEHE2.28%
E521% (ZE - :2.10% %
3.20%) °

FE 1Y AR IR

RBERREMNRRZEZBH 2R
oM

2023 2022
:%:E —_=__

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within 90 days T RA 9,970,520 14,591,168
91 to 180 days NT+—Z2—8BNT+X 5,484 -
Over 180 days —BNATXRUE 13,914 755,613
9,989,918 15,346,781

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on terms varying from 60 to 120 days of
invoice date.

ENARIBEREER - 8 R —KRNE
SEHHZATE-—B-_TREE-

SEERERERAT
—E-=55H
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HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

21. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. Bt EEREMENTKIE

2023 2022

—E-= —E=-=
Note HK$ HK$
M 5E BT BT
Contract liabilities EHEaE 21(a) 5,158,304 5,319,731
Other accrued liabilities HEMETAE 29,451 23,851
Other payables H i fE {5 5K I8 3,796,647 5,516,154
Accrued sales commission JERT SR E 1,852,622 2,657,667
Staff cost payables ERAE IR 18,810,622 19,483,945
29,647,646 33,001,348

HENRBERRE R EESNRFY

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average

credit period of 3 months. ={EA -

(a) Contract liabilities () EHAEE
The amount includes toolings and mould deposits ZeEBEEWERZEREK
received and sales deposits received. HERS -

AEEARBT BV B RE LT
152 KAEFFPADE WE
ARe RO WHERS ZB#EHN

The movements of toolings and mould deposits
received and sales/deposits received from contracts
with customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are as

follows: T
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January n—A—H 5,319,731 5,328,180
Recognised as revenue TR ARA (12,603,987)  (11,949,409)
Receipt of advances or recognition 4 BI| T8 i ZR I8 5§,
of receivables TSR FE W sk 18 12,442,560 11,940,960
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 5,158,304 5,319,731

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

21. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

. BRtEER EMEAFE @)

(a) ENEE#E)

(a) Contract liabilities (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there is a decrease in the overall contract activities
and customer base of the Group, thereby decreasing
the amount arising from the receipt of advances or
recognition of receivables.

At 31 December 2023, the contract liabilities that are
expected to be settled within the next twelve months
are HK$3,489,881 (2022: HK$4,680,713) and the
contract liabilities that are expected to be settled
after more than 12 months are HK$1,668,423 (2022:
HK$639,018). The customer paid for the goods or
services in advance and the timing of the transfer
of those goods or services is at the discretion of the
customer.

Unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied
performance obligations

The following table shows unsatisfied performance

HEZZ =K==
+—A=+—Hit - BRAEEH
EEKEBRERPE 2D -
W B T8 15 SR8 ok RE AR B W R IR Y

SR T -

RZZEZ=F+=—A=+—8 -
A 4B (583,489,881 7t (=
T~ — 4 : 4,680,713/ 7T ) T8 HA
RZre+=—EARES  6aH8A
& 181,668,423 L (T = =
F: 639,0188 L) THHAN A
Z2RT_EAKLE BEABEXE
YIS IRIG IR - W EEREED
HRIEHAS B R -

KIBITH BB K BT HY /B AT

Eff

BEWRAREREYHEREST

obligations resulting from toolings and mould deposits REBITHRBANBEEDT :
received and sales deposits received:
2023 2022
—EC-=HF S
HK$ HK$
BT I
Aggregate amount of the transaction R+ A=+—B2O 4%
price allocated to toolings and mould  ZBH L EEBARBITHID U
deposits received and sales deposits REEe REWHEEZS
received that are partially or fully K 4R3Z Z B
unsatisfied as at 31 December 7,539,437 8,627,138
Management expects that 65% (2022: 87%) of the EEEME; R _=F+=

A=+—H2BEEXREBTAER
M ZEBRNE5% (D= =
F:87%)BET —EAREHRN
MR AU A4,900,6347 7T (=
T — — 4 :7,505,610% 7T) -

transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance
obligations as of 31 December 2023 amounted
to HK$4,900,634 (2022: HK$7,505,610) will be
recognised as revenue during the next reporting
period. The remaining 35% (2022: 13%) amounted to

HK$2,638,803 (2022: HK$1,121,528) will be recognised HM35% (ZTZZ2F :13%)
in the 2025 financial year. The amount disclosed 2,638, 803/%71(—5&::
above does not include variable consideration which is 1,121,528 L) KR —_F - F

constrained. FYHFEER - J:LTBZE%@%E
TEEZHRA]EHE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 22. FEBITREMEER
BORROWINGS
2023 —E=
Effective
interest rate
(%) per annum Maturity Amount
BB ERE(%) R )= t8
HK$
B
Revolving term loans — unsecured 7.67-7.69 Fully repayable on 5/1/2024 4,000,000
EREHEN - BER H-R-NF¥-AEA2HME
Fully repayable on 18/1/2024 3,000,000
H-Z-OE-AtN\H2HEE
7,000,000
2022 = —
Effective
interest rate
(%) per annum Maturity Amount
EREFIR%)  FIHB gk
HK$
BT
Revolving term loans — unsecured 7.44 Fully repayable on 23/2/2023 3,000,000
EREHEN - BER H-T_=F_A_T=RA28EER
Trust receipt loans 5.61 Fully repayable on 17/1/2023 1,591,980
ERREER H-Z_=f-A+t+tH2HEE
4,591,980
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate AEEEEREHEREAFEMEE
their fair values. H e
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's bank RZE—_=ZFk_F_—_F+=A4
facilities were secured by a corporate guarantee executed by =+—B AKEEEARITEREE
the Company. ZHEBARRAT R 2 BEER -

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

23. LEASE LIABILITIES 23. HERE
The following table shows the remaining contractual R|ERR - NREERFIRE Q2 H
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the WEEAEWNT :

reporting periods:

2023 2022
—E=-= —E__
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Current: RE
Within one year R—FR 297,727 282,307
Non-current: ERE :
After one year but within three years —FBER=FR 127,463 418,932
425,190 701,239
The Group has recognised the following amounts for the RNEBREAMERATHIIE :
year:
2023 2022
—E-= . —
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Lease payments: HERE:

Short-term leases MEAFRE 203,544 204,345
Expenses recognised in profit or loss RIERER S B 203,544 204,345
Lease payments: HEE:

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6) HEEERE (Hiz6) 22,043 15,821

Under leases REET 282,283 255,967

304,326 271,788
Total cash outflow for leases HEZBReREE 507,870 476,133
Commitment under leases HEAE
At 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any R-E-—=%+—-A=+—08 K&
commitment to short-term leases (2022: Nil). By iEAECHASE (T - —

7)) -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

24. DEFERRED TAX

24, EERIE
AEBRNZREERBEEREESD

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during

the year are as follows: N
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EERE(EE) AfFE
2023 —E-=H
Fair value
change on  Depreciation
financial allowance
assets/ in excess
liabilities of related  Revaluation
at FVPL  depreciation of properties Total
#FVPL Fihep il
SRMEE/8F nEZ
ZATEEZL HERXHE MEER @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=%—Ff—H (698,974) 871,006 25,498,662 25,670,694
Deferred tax credited to income ~ RNEERMBERTALZ
statement during the year BRI (800,000) - - (800,000)
Deferred tax charged to other AEEREMPEKRA
comprehensive income M 2 BT E
during the year - - 723,276 723,276
Gross deferred tax R-E-_=F+-R=
(assets)/liabilities ZEL%RIE( E)/&f
at 31 December 2023 1% (1,498,974) 871,006 26,221,938 25,593,970
2022 —_EF——
Fair value
change on Depreciation
financial allowance
assets/ in excess
liabilities of related Revaluation
at FVPL depreciation of properties Total
HZFVPL it AR
CREE/EE nEZ
ZDTFEEEL nESHE MEER @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2022 E":giiifﬂ H 2,300,000 872,032 23,274,374 26,446,406
Deferred tax credited to income REENFBRTALZ
statement during the year EEHE (3,000,000) - - (3,000,000
Deferred tax charged to other TEEREMEAYRA
comprehensive income b 2 EBERE
during the year - - 2,224,288 2,224,288
(700,000) 872,032 25,498,662 25,670,694
Offsetting Wi 1,026 (1,026) = =
Gross deferred tax RZZE-—F+= E+ =
(assets)/liabilities at ERLHE(BE) /Af
31 December 2022 k] (698,974) 871,006 25,498,662 25,670,694
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the following items:

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

24, EER A (#)

RIIRRIELER R E E
HRARERECHBEEZRBWT -

2023 2022

—E-= —E-—
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deductible temporary differences AR EREER 4,580,417 720,612
Tax losses I8 E 8 25,798,838 13,278,953
At end of the reporting period A== N 30,379,255 13,999,565

Pursuant to Mainland China Corporate Income Tax Law,
a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends to be distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008 onwards.

At 31 December 2023, no deferred tax has been recognised
for such withholding taxes that would be payable on the
retained earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China that are subject to withholding taxes
at distribution. In the opinion of the directors, these
accumulated profits, at the present time, are required
for financing the continuing operations of the entities
and no distribution would be made in the future. The
aggregate amount of retained earnings associated
with these subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$12,251,000 at 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$12,584,000).

REBFBERECEMAETL  RPE
REKRIZINERELERIIERE
EERBREARI0%BURIAH - ik
REH_TEN\F-HA—HEEX
WERAR -_ZZLF+-_A=+—H
BREEN - P B AREEIIEREE
B REREERT AR F iR - A EA
BEMNEMRE - Bt AREER
ERR P B AR ZFH B QA
RZZZNF-A-BEELENEFN
Pt 0k 1O B B B A TR0 AR -

RZFEZ=%+=ZA=+—H0 " &&
(] N0 4% st A P B K Bk A2 2 T B A R
150 72 IR AR B8 28 ) s BE A 2 FE P TR
MERELEHE EZRAEREATA
IFZERTHMATZRAFEL
g WEAERRRETEDIR - R
—E-_=F+=-fA=+—H WER
RABRER AN B A RREETE
ﬁZﬁLmﬁEﬁ@ﬁmuzmow
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24, EIEFIR ()
Unrecognised deferred tax assets (continued) RINRELZEBREEE (&)
At 31 December 2023, the Group has unrecognised tax N—_E_=F+-_HA=+—8 K&
losses that can be offset against future taxable profits of ER AP R ZENE R A ER
the respective subsidiaries. No deferred tax asset has been 708 K 8O R R B I BT 18 © AR R R
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit i A E R TR - B U0 R g UL 7
streams. The expiry dates for unrecognised tax losses are as RIELEFHIBEE - RERPIBEED
follows: JEm BT
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Tax losses without expiration 2 8 m 2 T TE B 18 12,347,795 104,667
Tax losses expiring in: AT Em 2 BIEEE
-2024 -ZT-F 10,354,604 10,541,173
- 2025 -—_E_RF 930,623 947,391
- 2026 - AN - = 871,050 886,744
- 2027 - —E_+F 784,837 798,978
-2028 -ZTZN\F 509,929 -
At the end of the reporting period R |&E R 25,798,838 13,278,953
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the RNQ AR IR E T B AR R IR TS
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. HRERTE -
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. IR
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Shares Bz 15
Authorised: VATE ¢
900,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each 900,000,0000% & i% (&
0.108 7T 90,000,000 90,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTERERE
267,004,800 shares of HK$0.10 each  267,004,8000% & i% ™ &
0.108 7T 26,700,480 26,700,480

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26. RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 65 and 66 of the consolidated financial
statements.

The share premium account represents the excess of
the net proceeds or consideration from issuance of the
Company’s shares over their par value.

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result
of the Group’s reorganisation and represents the
excess of the nominal value of the share capital of the
former holding company of the Group, K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited, prior to the Group’s reorganisation
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares in
1996, over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefor, less the amount
capitalised to pay up the nil-paid shares issued on the
incorporation of the Company.

The asset revaluation reserve of the Group is used
to record the increases in the fair value of land and
buildings and the decreases to the extent that such
decrease relates to an increase on the same asset
previously recognised in equity.

The exchange fluctuation reserve of the Group is
used to record exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries.

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

() £

KEZEMARIEE 2 NEB G
FEBHB 2R ALRE T B HRE
FE65 K66 B ZirAEm B )R o

B EREETARRRNDE
SZGEFREFERNEBBE
E{EZ #B10 °

B aEERZEATIBRE
—NMN—FREEFL0KEE o

AEBZHBABBFEEAEEE
A HEAEERR—NANAEAR
FEHEARERMD LTz EERTA
S E ZAERARIK & P Group
(Holdings) Limited 2 f& 7 & (B 8
RABBRIBZERGD METR
AEBEMZ L2 S ERE NI
BT A R R 2 sE M A S B AT 3%
TREFRD 2 &5 °

AEBEZEEERHREMFL
B REFAFEEZEM -

KRR BERRBREER
BIERE A FEEE MR E

Ny
ZS o

I

AEE 2 E KB REEE RN
BIE BN E N R B HRR T
EEWELZE -

REERZERERA R
—E-=EFR
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HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

26. RESERVES (continued) 26. f#E &)

(b) Company (b) 2HF
Share
premium Contributed Accumulated  Proposed

account surplus losses dividend Total

ROEER  BARR  EHEFRE  EEERS @t

HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$

BT BT BT BT BT

1 January 2022 “$-_%-F-H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (40,328,053) 21,360,384 81,889,193
Profit for the year and total Zlii&hmw&ﬁil;%@l&)\%%ﬁ

comprehensive income for the year - - 32,079,492 - 32,079,492

2021 Final dividend paid (note 11) B ZZ=—FxHRE (W) = - - (21,360,384) (21,360,384)

Interim dividend paid (note 11) BARARE (eE1) - - (5,340,09) - (5340,096)

Special dividend paid (note 11) ERERIRE (BHEE11) = - (10,680,192) - (10,680,192)

Final dividend proposed (note 11) BERAKE (K1) = - (16,020,288) 16,020,288 =

At 31 December 2022 “F-__%#+-A=1-H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (40,289,137) 16,020,288 76,588,013
Profit for the year and total REERNRAFEZAMNGE

comprehensive income for the year - - 27,061,493 - 27,061,493

2022 Final dividend paid (note 1) BNZEZZERERE (F1) = = - (16,020,288) (16,020,288)

Interim dividend paid (note 11) Bt ER e () - - (5,340,096) - (5,340,09)
Final dividend proposed (note 11) BERBRS (W311) - - (21,360,384) 21,360,384 -
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=f+-A=1-A 50,856,881 49,999,981 (39,928,124) 21,360,384 82,289,122

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the underlying consolidated
net assets of K & P Group (Holdings) Limited and
its subsidiaries at the date on which the Group’'s
reorganisation became effective, referred to in note
26(a) to the consolidated financial statements, over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefore, less the amount
capitalised to pay up the nil-paid shares issued on the
incorporation of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
Company may make distributions to its members out
of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.
As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance with
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$31,432,241 (2022: HK$25,731,132).

KRB 2B ANBERIEK & P
Group (Holdings) Limited 5 £ B
BAAREBEAEMA 24
EEEFESEARRRMET
URBRZABRAEMEZ L
(B RS M WK M 3
26(a)) * BEHRERLARE
AR Z ML B AT 31T R R
Bip 2 & %8 -

BEEBRE-NN—FREE
RARAEFLENE u‘%‘l‘fﬁé%{)\@
ﬁ?ﬂP%mﬁEﬁXa{’Eﬂj DK ©
:7:_$+ A=+—8" $

RABRBERE-NN—FR
ETHEE - EM)%Z!S/AEW’E%;TE
2 R31,43221 8L (=%
— 4 :25731,13287C) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

27. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 27. MEEBHELEZEERD
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing REERETHEECABRED 25
activities are as follows: BT
2023 =F==
Interest-
bearing
bank and
other Lease Dividend
borrowing liabilities payable Total
FERTR
HifE g HESE ERE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B B B
At beginning of the year REAEES 4,591,980 701,239 - 5,293,219
New unsecured revolving term loans/ #riEEREREMER/
trust receipt loans ERREER 12,122,640 - - 12,122,640
Declaration of dividend ERKRE - - 21,360,384 21,360,384
Dividend paid BERBRE - - (21,360,384) (21,360,384)
Repayment of unsecured revolving BB EEABREHER/
term loans/trust receipt loans EflEER (9,714,620) - - (9,714,620)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEMESE - (282,283) - (282,283)
Exchange realignment [E 5 A% = 6,234 = 6,234
At end of the year REAEER 7,000,000 425,190 - 7,425,190
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

27. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 27. MEEEEEXCEEEH &)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

2022 = ——
Interest-
bearing bank
and other Lease Dividend
borrowing liabilities payable Total
mRBITR ‘
HftfEE HERE ERRE )
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At beginning of the year RAEET 18,792,000 124,128 = 18,916,128
New unsecured revolving term loans/ ¥ EEABREHER/
trust receipt loans ERREER 4,591,980 - - 4,591,980
New leases HEAE - 838,386 - 838,386
Declaration of dividend BIRRE - - 37,380,672 37,380,672
Dividend paid BRRE = - (37,380,672)  (37,380,672)
Repayment of unsecured revolving  EEEBBEREHER/
term loans/trust receipt loans EFXREER (18,792,000) - = (18,792,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERR = (255,967) - (255,967)
Exchange realignment [E R A% - (5,308) - (5,308)
At end of the year RAFER 4,591,980 701,239 - 5,293,219
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and leases HERIRITREMEEREE S ENLR
liabilities are disclosed in note 22 and 23 to the consolidated A B RERNE22%235 Bl & -
financial statements respectively.
28. COMMITMENTS 28. EIE
Except for those disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated %ﬁ\ﬁgmﬁé\ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁ@iﬂﬁ
financial statements, at the end of the reporting period, the Sh REBEHR - AREAETAE
Group did not have any other capital commitments. ARAEHE -
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BEALTRZ
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: REBXZEEAB 2T
2023 2022
—E-=F —ET -
HK$ HK$
BT I
Short term employee benefits = HEE B A 7,534,460 10,262,152
Contributions to retirement benefit R KA A ET &R
schemes 18,000 18,000
Total compensation paid to key SNTEEEEABZ
management personnel 42 3R EM 7,552,460 10,280,152
The above compensation for key management personnel of N EREBFEEIREAB Z RN IE
the Group includes emoluments paid to the directors. Further YTNFEZZHE -BHREEHES 2
details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the BRI B IR RS B S R T 58 -

consolidated financial statements.

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30 R TENDE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBERR - eI ASERNNRE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as BT
follows:
2023 ===
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised asset at
cost FVPL Total
REERAZ EFVPLZ
SREE SREE HEt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets as per consolidated REGEMBERRERZ
statement of financial position: SREE:
Financial asset at FVPL RFVPLZ € BB E

— Club membership —BMgRE - 680,000 680,000
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEREMNFTE  BE R

deposits and other receivables (note 17) HibEW B &5

& (fist17) 1,350,329 - 1,350,329
Trade receivables FEW AR 1B 35,895,370 - 35,895,370
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 100,355,497 - 100,355,497
137,601,196 680,000 138,281,196
2023 =%==
Financial
liabilities at Financial
amortised liabilities at
cost FVPL Total
RE A EFVPLZ
ZEmEE cRAE HEt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial liabilities as per consolidated RIBHEMBRAER 2
statement of financial position: SRAE:
Financial liability at FVPL BRFVPLZ & BB &

— Forward currency contracts —BREEBEH - 9,192,223 9,192,223
Trade payables JE 1 BR 18 9,989,918 - 9,989,918
Financial liabilities included in accrued BEREFEEREM

liabilities and other payables (note 21) [ENZBEZzZEREE

(Ft5E21) 5,028,285 - 5,028,285
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings %% 548 1T} H fh {& & 7,000,000 - 17,000,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 425,190 - 425,190

22,443,393 9,192,223 31,635,616
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30 2RITENSE &)

(continued)
2022 =
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised asset
cost at FVPL Total
REESH AR 2 BFVPLZ
TREE THEE Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets as per consolidated BEGREVBERARZ
statement of financial position: EWMEE
Financial asset at FVPL RFVPLZ © Bh & B
— Club membership —SHeH = 680,000 680,000
— Forward currency contracts - REPEELH - 579,976 579,976
Financial assets included in prepayments, BERENRIE Eek
deposits and other receivables (note 17) Hip W8 2 & @l
BE (K17) 708,225 - 708,225
Trade receivables JE W AR IR 57,813,339 - 57,813,339
Bank balances and cash RITERER S 90,535,145 - 90,535,145
149,056,709 1,259,976 150,316,685
2022 -
Financial
liabilities at Financial
amortised  liabilities at
cost FVPL Total
RBHKAZ BFVPLZ
TRAE TREE BEr
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial liabilities as per consolidated BEGAETBARARZ
statement of financial position: TRAE:
Financial liability at FVPL BIVPLZ &R AE
— Forward currency contracts —RHEEEH - 4,820,747 4,820,747
Trade payables FESBRIR 15,346,781 - 15,346,781
Financial liabilities included in accrued BEREFTAEREMER
liabilities and other payables (note 21) FEzemaE (HsE21) 7,384,705 - 7,384,705
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #BR1T N EMEE 4,591,980 - 4,591,980
Lease liabilities HEBE 701,239 = 701,239
28,024,705 4,820,747 32,845,452
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

31. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 31. AFEEE
The following presents the assets and liabilities measured ATREBMBHREEAEI35R : A
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these FREEFEMAEZATEE=AZ
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis across BINHIZ AT EEFEZEERBE
the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS BRI E MR ERNGRE M EHRRE
13, Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement ZATEEZBEENREZRESR
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input that MY A FEENERBITEFEAXE
is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of inputs B ARIE - MABRBESEREENT :

are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in F—HR(ERER)  A5ELEFEAR
active markets for identical assets A {E & B8 T 45 Y
or liabilities that the Group can FHEREEXE
access at the measurement date; BzWmE CRE

FHE)

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices gt BENBEIVE
included within Level 1 that B HEER
are observable for the asset AR F—
or liability, either directly or RBIE 2 WwER
indirectly; Hh

Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset F=R(REER) : BEFABZD
or liability. B R A

i o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

31. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 31. 2 EEFE#E)
The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities TRERRATEEAENEERE
measured at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy: B WIRATFEESRIE 2D
2023 —E-=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-8 -t E=% @t
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial assets EREE:
Financial assets at FVPL: RFVPLZ S RIEE -
— Club membership Ui
- outside Hong Kong —BBEI 680,000 - - 680,000
Leasehold land and HEREIHRETF:
buildings:
Commercial - Hong Kong EE-—BB - - 64,821,000 64,821,000
Owned buildings: BEETF:
Industrial T¥-FHEEHN
- outside Hong Kong - - 75,098,000 75,098,000
Financial liabilities: CREE:
Financial liabilities at FVPL: BRVPLZ 2 RBAE
— Forward currency contracts — R HE A/ - 9,192,223 - 9,192,223
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BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

31. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 31. AF¥EEE#E)
2022 = ——
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
% E-® F=/R BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets SREE :
Financial assets at FVPL: BIVPLZ &SRB E -
— Club membership =l
- outside Hong Kong —BBEIN 680,000 - - 680,000
— Forward currency contracts —EHEEAR - 579,976 - 579,976

Leasehold land and buildings: HERFLHEET:

Commercial - Hong Kong ERE - 69,590,000 - 69,590,000
Owned buildings: HEEF

Industrial - outside Hong Kong ~ L% —&F&E I = - 75,382,000 75,382,000
Financial liabilities: FRAE:

Financial liabilities at FVPL: BRIVPLZ 2 BB & :

— Forward currency contracts - REPEELRH - 4,820,747 - 4,820,747
During the year ended 31 December 2023, land and building HE_Z-_=F+=-A=+—H
— commercial Hong Kong was transferred into Level 3 with EFEEA - URBB 2 T REE
the fair value of HK$64,821,000 (2022: Nil). BTEAZF=-ES2H 2 TFEER

64,821,000/8 T(— T = —F: ) -

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of AEBWBRERNEME LN EHE
Level 3 as at the end of the reporting period in which the EEABRE=EHENEARED o

transfer occurs.
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HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

31. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 31. AEEEFTE(#E)
Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements E=RLAFEEFTEZEH
2023 —E-=

Land and

Land and building:
building: Industrial -
Commercial - outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong

THREF: T REF:
HE-FE IX-FBEHN

HK$ HK$
Description #at BT BT
At beginning of the reporting period i R==p ek ) - 75,382,000
Transferred from level 2 asset to HE-_REEEZE="REE
level 3 asset (Note) (5F) 64,821,000 -
Depreciation debited to profit or loss BRIk omE - (2,548,734)
Fair value gain on revaluation credited to ~ &E A FBE WA
other comprehensive income Hith 2= E A - 3,712,736
Exchange realignment M 5, E & - (1,448,002)
At the end of the reporting period R E R 64,821,000 75,098,000
Unrealised gains for the period included NEA R B EE R R
in profit or loss held at the end of the RMEBRRTHE 2
reporting period AE R W= - -
Note: The transfer from Level 2 to Level 3 was due to significant i HARMSLEZLIHREFRZRD, &
unobservable input is required, resulting from a decrease in market REESATAIBRE ABBIEDT,
activity for the land and building. PEHE_REEEE=E -
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BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

31. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 31. 2 EEFE#E)
Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements F=RAFEEFEZERE (Z)
(continued)

2022 S —
Land and
building:
Industrial -
outside
Hong Kong
THRETF :
T -—FHEREN
HK$
Description it BT
At beginning of the reporting period e R i) 76,223,000
Depreciation debited to profit or loss BRIk 2TE (2,499,119)
Fair value gain on revaluation credited to FHEAEEBEKZEE A
other comprehensive income HEfb2EKRA 6,122,915
Exchange realignment R (4,464,796)
At the end of the reporting period R E R 75,382,000
Unrealised gains for the period included in profit or ~ AHIRE @ IEEE R MR RS KR
loss held at the end of the reporting period FEZARBR &= =
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HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

31. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 2 fair value measurement

a)

Forward currency contracts

The fair value of forward currency contracts is measured
by comparing the contracted forward rates and the
guoted forward exchange rates for the remaining
contractual maturity, by the same bank, which are
observable at the end of the reporting period.

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 3 fair value measurement

a)

b)

Properties located in Mainland China

The fair value of the properties located in Mainland
China was revalued by Chung, Chan & Associates,
independent professionally qualified valuer, using
depreciated replacement cost approach. The valuer
considered the subject properties are specialised
properties for which there is no readily market
observable transaction of similar properties. The
estimation of fair value of the subject properties took
into account their current cost of replacement or
reproduction, less deduction for physical deterioration
and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation.

Properties located in Hong Kong

The properties located in Hong Kong were revalued by
Chung, Chan & Associates, independent professionally
qualified valuer, on the basis of market value by the
comparison approach, which is based on market
observable transactions of similar properties and
adjusted for differences in key valuation attributes, such
as size and age to reflect the conditions of the subject
properties.

31. 2 EEFE#E)
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31. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of valuation
techniques used in Level 3 fair value measurement

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
input and description of valuation techniques used in Level
3 fair value measurement, including the description of the
sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs for recurring
Level 3 fair value measurements, are as follows:

e MBHRRME

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T=

=F+_A=t—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2023

31. 2 EEFE#E)

BF=ZERLVEEFNERAZE
RATBEERARB2ELESR
RiEETEH#HL

FZRAFEEFEMRZIEANT
BRBABEB EBCEMRGETA
il - BRHREUEE =R A FEE
AEZTABRBARBEEE 2 G

ERBIT :

Unobservable input

FUBRGABE

Sensitivity of fair value
to changes in
unobservable inputs
FTEERARE
AYEEHBESD

Fair value at Valuation
Description 31 December 2023 techniques
RZBZ=£+ZR
it St-BZAYER HERE
Asset
8E
Property, plant and equipment
WE BERZE
- Properties included in land and ~ HK$75,098,000 (2022: Depreciated
building: Industrial outside HK$75,382,000) replacement
Hong Kong cost approach
“MEAETLHRET 75,098,000/ ¢ REEERAE
s NS (z%=:z
75,382,000 )

- Commercial property situated in - HK$64,821,000 (2022: Market

Hong Kong HK$69,590,000) Comparison
Approach
~WRBBLEENE 64,821,000 7 [k 15 A%
(Z2zzF:
69,590,000 )

Estimated costs of construction
(HK$156 (equivalent to RMB142)
per sq. ft.) (2022: HK$156
(equivalent to RMB138) per sq.
ft.) of similar type of industrial
premises with adjustment on age,
condition, utility, etc.

BRIZMEERER R
RMERE L B RERAR
(1568 (ENMRARE) /
FHR)(ZEZZF 1568
(BH13BARE) /EAHR) -

Premium or discount for quality
of properties (e.g. view, level
and condition of the commercial
property), adjustment basically
range from about -9.1% to +7.1%
(2022: -3.2% to 0%)

WEEE EBINE (MAHENZ
RB BEIR) AXEREE
BA-9.1%E47.1% (2T =%
-3.2%%Z0%)

Assuming other factors
remain unchanged, the
higher the estimated
cost of construction, the
higher the fair value, and
vice versa.

R @I?T """"" R
k&ﬁ ATEES
&zx%o

Assuming other factors
remain unchanged, the
higher the market price,
the higher the fair value,
and vice versa.

BRABAETE - i
BT DTARE
& R2ZI%:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

31.

32.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of valuation
techniques used in Level 3 fair value measurement
(continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group has a team comprising of executive directors and
finance manager reviewing estimation of fair value of the
properties. Fair values of the properties are estimated by the
independent professionally qualified valuer on an annual
basis. Discussions of the valuation process and results with
the executive directors and the Audit Committee are held
twice a year, for the Group's interim and annual reporting.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and cash and
short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial instruments such
as trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables and accrued liabilities and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

31.

32.

NP EETE R

F=ERAVEEFNEMACZE
RFUBERAHBZEBILER
RSET EZHE (&)

EEEEESF

AEBYEZ A FEESHES M
BXEREN/ MRS - REWELZ
AFBESFHBIEXAERMLE
BhEEfE o BMERF RERNEFMR
AEENTHRFEREEEENE

BERERFW -

MBEREEBERBEE

AEBEZITZeRITABIETRRT
REMEE  URBREREHFK -
ZEERTAZIZANERAKE
LEERET -AKENTEZHER
NeBEr 7 HiemT A » flanE
WHRIE - AN IR - mEe REMEK
HIE - ENEREREFABEREME
3R -

AEESRTAY k22X Z/AMR B
BEE FERREABESER -
EEgEMLRAEEREEZERAR
ZBR - Bam
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. BiIERMEEBERKE &)
AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Foreign currency risk (a) S E Bz

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such AEEBERSEERRE - LRER
exposures arise mainly from (i) the operating units in BREOWEEREBEEEVFES
Hong Kong which maintain cash in Hong Kong dollar, KRe  WAHINEEY - B
their functional currency, but make sales in USD and EAETT - MEREAA R ST
purchases in RMB. (ii) the majority of the transactions of (i) B AFELEREMNE B
the operating units in Mainland China are denominated ARERS BEESEBRA
in RMB but their funds are mainly sourced from BBEBEM M) EEF N
Hong Kong operating units. (iii) the operating unit in WEBEMHFHENIMETHRE -
Singapore which maintain cash in Singapore dollar, its L REGEER  BHEENUET
functional currency, but make sales in USD. {ERTE -

Exposure to foreign currencies

SRR
2023 2022
—EC-ZE “E-CF
HKD RMB usp HKD RMB usb
BT AR ES BT ARE I
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B B BT BT BT BT
Financial assets SREE 666,120 61,971,812 1,467,658 3 37,377,873 2,407,455
Financial liabilities SREE (46,000,000) - (6,226,059) (46,000,000) - (6,231,255)
Net exposure FER (45,333,880) 61,971,812  (4,758,401) (45,999,997) 37,377,873  (3,823,800)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. BiIEMEEBERKE &)

AND POLICIES (continued)
(a) IMNEREBE (&)
BRE DT

MRETTEE TR R AEER
AREAEREME S HAREEE
kA E - NEBFAER TN
BERBREN - A TRBERINR
THREMEBRFTE R
BREMEEERZTE M
KERAELREEKHZIER
T AEEEREREBER(RER
EENBEOHNATEELRE

(a) Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to USD and that the Group tries to match its assets and
liabilities with the same currency, the Group’s exposure
to USD foreign currency risk is minimal. The following
table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible changes in
the foreign exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant and excluding the effect of the forward
currency contracts, of the Group’s loss after tax (due

to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and B)) CBREDH o
liabilities).
2023 2022
—E-=E —E-—fF
(Decrease)/
Increase in (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
foreign Increase in loss Increase in foreign  Increase in loss
exchange rates after tax  exchange rates after tax
NEEEZ  BEAER  EEXZ  BRESE
(R4) /% (H4) /% (R4) /&m (R4)/&m
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong dollars BT (2%) (757,076) (9%) (3,456,900)
Renminbi AR 2% (1,034,929) 8% (2,496,842)
United States dollars e 1% 39,733 1% 31,929
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk

32. IKEMEEEEREEK#®)

(b) FERR

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position,
which is net of impairment losses, represents the
Group’s exposure to credit risk without taking into
account the value of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. The Group’s trading terms
with its customers are mainly on credit, except for
new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. Invoices are normally payable within 60
days of issuance, except for certain well-established
customers, where the terms are extended from 60 to
90 days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by senior management.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit risk
but to a lesser extent. Credit quality of a customer
is assessed based on an extensive credit rating and
individual credit limit assessment which is mainly based
on the Group’s own trading records.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as 38% (2022: 37%) of the
balance representing a receivable from two customers
(2022: a single customer), which was derived from sales
by the precision parts and components segment.

REEHBRAKRERNESRE
EREESMRRERSRE - KX
AEENEERR - XL RF &
PR B A ERREMERIEE
MEE-

FEWIRE

AEEERAFEENS =HET
Ry BRAKENEREK - I8
BREEHETRINEF &
ARBEERERFR A%
B ARBEEPEERGRD
TERFHFZEERER -
EPF—REBZENHE - —KRE
EFEEANTRAXNMN - RIFE
BEFAZANTENTRER
BEiE - BREFPHEREREE -
AEBLREEEEFREGERRE
ZH KB EERKAREEER
- RREEESEHRHBHE
WHRESRIERE] -

AEEAZEERRZIEEETE
XEEPZEMNFHERE - &P
It EZTTRERAEZBR 2
RERTZEEERR  BI2E
HiM - BEFHNEREEENER
B {E A REAR A E A S B R E AHE
AT - ZAEEZERE
BECHR S -

RIREHR - AEER WA
BB EERRESE R38%
(ZBEZZF :37%) W RER
REBHOBOMEBERL(ZF
ZZF:—REF) -

REERZERERDA

—E-=EFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. BiIEMEEBERKE &)
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) ESERB (&)

Trade receivables (continued) FEWARE (&)

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range rEENEFHHEZNEPH
of clients and the trade receivables are categorised B - FEUARIRIZ SRR R e o
by common risk characteristics that are representative o RERBEPIRBEOGRIZM
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in FiB B EARIBHIRE ) o AR B R
accordance with the contractual terms. The Group BB R At EEKERENTE
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for HEEEE - UWRESERER
trade receivables and recognises a loss allowance HEHEREEEERREER
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has #H WEIERERDEEERE
established a provision matrix that is based on its KRR BEERE - RIBBEBA
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward- MEEEIRE LSRRI A=
looking factors specific to the debtors and the THE - REBAE=FHNERE
economic environment. The expected loss rate used EEELCRITEGEERNNREE
in the provision matrix is calculated for each category ElEFERNEREER - WRE
based on actual credit loss experience over the past ERMBIEEZETHAE - IR
three years and adjusted for current and forward- ML LT £R R 52 SRR R A D A B AR
looking factors to reflect differences between economic ZHEMER BREAEEER
conditions during the period over which the historical AR ST A FE U Sk 1B TR BR 6 IR
data has been collected, current conditions and the B &t o

Group's estimate on future economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or FRMER 2B EASIERR
significant assumptions made during the year. 2R ) o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. BiIERMEEBERKE &)
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) SER (&)
Trade receivables (continued) FEWARE (&)
The information about the exposure to credit risk and ERBEEENEKRERENEE
ECL for trade receivables using a provision matrix is R ATEHE EEEE R Bt
summarised below. T
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=f+=-A=t—8
Gross
Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
AHEEE BIREE EERE FERE
% HKS HK$
B B
Not past due 1) A 40 5 0 28,857,200 - NofE
Less than 1 month past due ~ BEALR—{EA 0 5,145,281 - NofE
1 to 3 months past due BH—Z=={EA 0 1,529,075 - Nof&
3 to 6 months past due BE=ZF XA A 0 363,814 - Nof&
1 to 2 years past due BE—EWE 100 30,500 30,500 YesH
35,925,870 30,500

As at 31 December 2022
RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H

Gross

Expected carrying Loss Credit-
loss rate amount allowance impaired
HHBEX BEmE ERER FERE

% HK$ HK$

BT BT
Not past due 1) A 480 5 0 40,052,977 - Nof
Less than 1 month past due ~ BEALR—{EA 0 11,556,409 - No%
1 to 3 months past due BH-—Z={EA 0 4,735,199 = Nof&
3 to 6 months past due BE=Z XA A 0 1,468,754 - Nof&
1 to 2 years past due BE—EWE 100 30,500 30,500 YesH

57,843,839 30,500
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HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. BiIEMEEBERKE &)
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EER &)
Trade receivables (continued) FEY AR IE (42 )
The Group does not hold any collateral over trade R—ZE—_=F+=-A=+—80"
receivables as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). N (B0 £ B R W BR IE 5 B (1]

B (ZZT_—F &) -

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recognised loss RZBEZ=F+=—R=+—8 "
allowance of HK$30,500 (2022: HK$30,500) on the 7N £ (B Bt FE Uk PR TE HE R RS 1R
trade receivables. The movement in the loss allowance #30,5008 T (Z T - — % :
for trade receivables is summarised below. 30,5008 7T) © FE U BRIE B 1E 5
B2EHPRNOT :
2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

HK$ HK$

BT BT
At beginning of year RE ) 30,500 285,479
Amount written off & A 8H - (254,979)
At end of year RER 30,500 30,500
Other receivables HEMERNE
The Group considers that the other receivables have $§%lw7%ﬁ’rwgﬂﬂlmlﬁﬁ’\ﬂé%
low credit risk based on the borrowers’ strong capacity BEREIE  ERERATEREHR
to meet their contractual cash flow obligations in the BITEARESRERTENENR
near term and low risk of default. Impairment on other 58 ME A RBRERIK o Hh e
receivables is measured on 12-month ECL and reflects ERRER T —EAANEREE
the short maturities of the exposures. B2 WRETEHRR -
In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account EHGEHREESE  A5EE
the historical actual credit loss experience over the EREBABE=F(ZT=_=
past 3 years (2022: 3 years) and the financial position F:ZF)NRELEREEEBE
of the counterparties by reference to, among others, KERRE TP BN - HR e
their management or audited accounts and available FE2EZHEBEIRBEZRAR
press information, adjusted for forward-looking factors AR TIRER - WIREEEA
that are specific to the debtors and general economic FFE R RTHE M B = R 8 5 A8 & P
conditions of the industry in which the counterparties ETENEBEBLCEARRIELSA
operate, in estimating the probability of default of these B DU EEmEENED
financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in each BEARSEBRTHELIE
case. The management of the Group considers the ECL K o IEEBE M BARR RS
of these financial assets to be insignificant after taking EERE AEEERERR/Z
into account the financial position and credit quality of LeRMEENTEHREEBRLT
the counterparties. ERKXo
There was no change in the estimation techniques or FAMEL 2 BE T ERERR
significant assumptions made during the year. BB o

i K & P International Holdings Limited
156 : -

Annual Report 2023




e MBHRRME

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk
The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative
and derivative financial liabilities as at the end of

BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

32. WEREEERREE &)

() RBEZRER

REBRIRERRAFT ORI =
NREEFEZFTERITES

the reporting period, based on the contractual BBENT :
undiscounted payments is as follows:
2023 2022
ot St “E--F
After After After After
Within 1 year 2 years Within 1 year 2 years
Total 1yearoron butwithin but within Total Tyearoron  butwithin  but within
amount  demand  2years  Syears  amount  demand 2 years 5 years
-Fhy  -FRE  BERE —FRg%  —FRE  WERE
B8  REX  WER &R #%  REX WER  IER
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS HK§ HK§ HK§ HK$
BT B AT B AT BT AT BT
Non-derivative: FiiER:
Trade payables R EE 9,989,918 9,989,918 - - 15,346,781 15,346,781 - -

Financial liabilities included B2 M EsHE &R
in accrued liabilities and ~ ERZUEZ 2BAR

other payables (note 21) ~ (fif21) 5,028,285 5,028,285 -
Iterest-bearing bank ~ BEHIREE

borrowings 7,014,953 7,014,953 -
Lease liabilities HEBR 443361 315332 128,029
Derivative: i

Financial liabilities at FVPL  &FVPLZ S RERE  9,192.223 8,045,759 1,146,464

- 7384705 7384705 = =

- 4625003 4,625,003 = =
- 13517 304352 304352 126813

- 4820747 4,820,747 = =

31,668,740 30,394,247 1,274,493

- 32912753 32481588 304352 126813

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

(d) EXER

AEREREANEZARRR
EARSENRELERN LR
RIZHEARLLE - LSIREER
BREBBEREREANEE -

SEERERERAT
—E-=55H
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HE-T-_=F+-A=+—BILFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. BiIEMEEBERKE &)

AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Capital management (continued)

(d) EXEE#E)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return of capital to shareholders or
issue of new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirement. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net
debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, lease liabilities, trade payables, accrued
liabilities and other payables less bank balances and
cash. Capital includes equity attributable to owners
of the Company. The gearing ratios at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

AEBeRELEERREEEER
HEEAREBIWHEELRAE - &
WA EAREE  AEER
EHRBIA FREMKRE « &
BEARTIRRSBEITHRGD - A%
ETE Z B ERINEBAFT INE
KB - REE_BE_=FK_
T —HE+-A=+—HItFEE
N BEEEEEANEE  BUR
MRRE W EAEH E M EE) -

AEERBEAABLERERA
BAER - ETEEFERAR
BERMERFENE - BHEFE
BRGEERTREMES  ME
B BNERE - EtAaERE
M SRIR - WNRIBITAESR K
e BABEARRREEAM
EHEs - RMEMARZEARRE
BT

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—

HK$ HK$
BT T

Interest-bearing bank and other HERITRAMEER
borrowings 7,000,000 4,591,980
Lease liabilities HERE 425,190 701,239
Trade payables JE 1~ BR 18 9,989,918 15,346,781
Accrued liabilities and other payables &5t & 1& [ £ b & <tz I8 29,647,646 33,001,348
Less: Bank balances and cash W IRITEBRRIRS (100,355,497)  (90,535,145)

Net debt B E (53,292,743)  (36,893,797)
Total equity M # MR 299,759,886 350,251,839
Total capital and net debt MERREEFE 246,467,143 313,358,042
Gearing ratio (Note) BEARBELE(GE) N/A N/A
Note: As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group was in net it R =FER-_TE__F+_—
cash position and the gearing ratio is negative. A=+—8 ' x&SEEFHLM
ARBEEEREE -
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BE-_T_=F+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

33. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 33. ARRBIZ 8RR *

POSITION
2023 2022
—E-= —_=__
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WEARZ&E 58,999,981 58,999,981
Due from subsidiaries A NG @] 92,022,839 68,873,812
151,022,820 127,873,793
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FEfIFIE « & &
receivables H A pE W F IR 322,275 282,127
Bank balances and cash HeNREZSEEE 242,109 297,078
564,384 579,205
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued liabilities and other ExaER
payables o {th & 5 3R I8 298,820 285,400
Due to subsidiaries R NETE 42,284,741 24,824,691
Tax payables & S F5 18 14,041 54,414
42,597,602 25,164,505
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (42,033,218)  (24,585,300)
Net assets BEFHE 108,989,602 103,288,493
EQUITY E=
Share capital B& X 25 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves 15 26(b) 82,289,122 76,588,013
Total equity T 2 4B R 108,989,602 103,288,493

HFBERRRER T _MFE=H
Tt BHEREFSHERTERM
WA FIALTRRERE :

This statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March
2024 and signed on its behalf by

Lai Pei Wor Chan Yau Wah
FEIE A PR & 2
Director Director

EE EE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AT AREERIBE AN KEE 2 %45
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the ZBENEBGEHME LB SEEAHERX
published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out #R&BIFEIRE o

below.
RESULTS 44
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t—-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f —T--& —T--—%# —ZE-_TF —ZE-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FET FHT TiET
REVENUE WA 185,787 272,103 418,202 341,758 345,581
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BT (B5#E) /i F (26,567) 1,306 72,631 77,609 22,386
TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSES)  #mE# %,/ (Fisx) 469 (1,809) (9,333) (10,699) (5,727)
(LOSS)/PROFIT ZiNYNETEZZ SN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO Frih (&) /
OWNERS OF THE i
COMPANY (26,098) (503) 63,298 66,910 16,659
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
31 December
t=ZA=t-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—g-=f -—T--& —T--—% —E-_TF —E-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T T FHT TET
Total assets BEE 383,668 436,908 531,050 486,665 401,193
Total liabilities BEE (83,908) (86,657) (136,301) (136,271) (114,887)
299,760 350,251 394,749 350,394 286,306
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